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Senate Select Committee on Mobile and Manufactured Homes
January 26, 1999 Hearing, 3 - 5 p.m.
Room 3191, State Capitol

Mobilehome Park Inspection Program

Background Paper

Purpose:
The Mobilehome Park Inspection Program, which currently requires every mobilehome

park in the state to undergo a complete health and safety inspection at least once every
eight years, will sunset on January 1, 2000. The purpose of this hearing is to consider
whether the program should be continued, either for another cycle, such as 7 or 8 years,
or indefinitely. To a large extent that will be determined by 1) whether the program has
been effective in maintaining and improving health and safety conditions in California
mobilehome parks, 2) what aspects of the program can be changed to make the program
work better, and 3) to what extent, if any, park owner and homeowner fees which support
the program will have to be increased to continue it.

Historical perspective: ,

As far back as 1920, state regulations governed health and safety in auto camps,
predecessors of modern mobilehome parks. The Mobilehome Parks Act was adopted by
the Legislature in 1967, giving the Commission (now Department) of Housing and
Community Development (HCD) authority to regulate the construction, use,
maintenance, and occupancy of mobilehome parks and the installation, use, maintenance
and occupancy of mobilehomes located in those parks. Specific health and safety
requirements, such as set back requirements for mobilehomes from their lot lines, the
height of mobilehome stairway risers, or the length of gas connectors, for example, are
spelled out, not in statute, but by department regulations, commonly known as “Title 257
(Chapter 2, Division 1, Title 25 of the California Code of Regulations). See Addendum #
| for areas specifically covered by the regulations. Traditionally, regulations have been
enforced by inspection at the time of the construction of the park and as a condition of
granting the initial permit to operate. Some years ago, the basic statutorily fee for a
park’s annual permit to operate was set at $25 per park, plus $2 per space. Prior to 1974,
regular inspections of existing mobilehome parks were carried out on a biennial basis, but
with the repeal of that provision in 1973 most inspections, prior to enactment of the
Mobilehome Park Inspection Program, were carried out only on a complaint basis.
Complaints were reviewed at the field office level where they were prioritized as to
urgency and then assigned to an inspector, who made an appointment with the park
manager to inspect the problem generated by the complaint. In addition to regular
inspections, HCD still responds to complaints but inspection is normally limited to the
matter addressed by the complaint and is not an inspection of the whole park.

Jurisdiction:
Inspection of mobilehome parks has been carried out by either HCD or by local
governments, where the local agency has agreed to assume the inspection duties from the
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Park Inspection Hearing Background Paper

Department. Today, HCD has 36 inspectors statewide, operating in conjunction with 6
district offices and two main offices, one in Sacramento and one in Riverside, who
perform a variety of tasks, including inspection of farm worker housing as well as park
and installation inspections. Enforcement agencies issue some 5,070 mobilehome parks
with about 376,000 spaces or lots annual permits to operate. HCD retains the largest
share of inspection responsibilities with about 2/3rds of the state’s parks. 85 local
agencies have opted to assume park enforcement duties. See Addendum # 2 for a list of
these jurisdictions.

Mobilehome Park Inspection Program:

Due to increasing complaints about code violations in mobilehome parks and the lack of
a regular inspection program, in 1990 the Legislature passed AB 925 ( O’Connell), which
established the Mobilehome Park Inspection Program. The new program mandated that
HCD and local enforcement agencies, during a five year period, inspect every
mobilehome park and the mobilehomes in those parks at least once during that period to
assure that code requirements for parks, and the installation of mobilehomes in those
parks, were being met.

An additional $4 per space per year was added to the annual $25 plus $2 per space permit
to operate fee to support the program, $2 paid by the park owner and $2 permitted to be
passed through to homeowners. The program’s original sunset date was January 1,

1997. Due to complaints about enforcement, the Legislature later modified the program
 to give enforcement agencies the discretion not to issue a notice of violation where they
determined the violation was not a matter of health or safety. In 1994, delays in
inspecting parks under the program, due to exigencies created by the Northridge
Earthquake, required the Legislature to extend the one-time inspection program to 7
years, with a new sunset date of January 1, 1999 (SB 1663, Craven, 1994). Later, the
Legislature extended the sunset date again to January 1, 2000 (SB 485, Craven, 1998).

Program Implementation:

Implementation of the Mobilehome Park Inspection Program began in 1992, with HCD
developing a process known as the “pre-inspection conference”. The inspector sets up an
appointment with the park owner or manager up to 60 days prior to the formal inspection
date to explain the inspection process, provide notices to be posted in the park, and
deliver inspection booklets for the park operator to distribute to residents informing them
of the upcoming inspection and what is required. Residents also receive individual notice.

Initial inspections are normally conducted no sooner than 30, or later than 60, days of the
date posted on the notice. Inspectors wear blue vests with the Department insignia and
carry HCD identification cards. Inspectors record all conditions in the park which don’t
comply with the law or regulations. Each mobilehome space and all park common areas
are inspected, including recreational facilities, pools, lighting systems, streets, utility
systems and homes. Inspections are, however, to the exterior of the home, and inspectors
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do not go inside. Regulations are not retroactive, so a park or installation built in
accordance with regulations in effect at the time of construction are grandfathered in,
unless there is a hazard to health and safety, in which case compliance with current
regulations will be required.

Whenever a violation requiring correction is discovered, a notice of violation is issued,
to park owners and managers for park violations, and to homeowners for mobilehome
violations with a copies to the park. There are four violation categories:

Category A: Imminent hazards requiring immediate correction - will be issued on the
spot and may require disconnection of electrical, gas, or other utilities. The inspector will
return to verify correction. An example is bare electrical wiring or leaky gas connections.
Category B: Unreasonable risks to health and safety requiring correction within 60 days -
will be issued by mail through HCD’s automated notice system. The inspector will
return to verify correction. An example is a faulty staircase riser or handrail.

Category C: Risks to health and safety which are not imminent hazards and which are
recorded, but for which there is no time limit for correction. The inspector will not return
to verify correction. An example is a home or accessory structure which encroaches 2
inches over a setback requirement.

Category D: Technical or administrative violations which are not recorded and for which
no notice is issued. A example is an accessory which was installed without a permit 10
years ago, which does not present a health and safety hazard.

Re-inspections for categories A and B are conducted as soon as practical after the
expiration of the time for correction of the violation. If re-inspection reveals that
previously cited violations are still uncorrected, a second notice of violation is issued.

Where the park owner or a homeowner disputes a citation, an informal conference is held
at their request with the enforcement agency’s supervisory personal concerning the
violation, failure to correct or granting of additional time to correct the violation. Within
5 days, the enforcement agency renders a decision to the disputing party to either enforce,
modify, or eliminate the disputed notice of violation. Where a park owner or
homeowner refuses to correct a Category A or B violation, after several notices and time
to correct has expired, ultimately the enforcement agency may refer the violation to the
local district attorney for prosecution as a misdemeanor.

Program problem areas. Prior to the introduction of AB 925, many mobilehome park
owners and their associations were opposed to or at least uncomfortable with the prospect
of regular inspections of their parks and paying the additional fees to support such a
program. Homeowners’ groups were in the forefront of lobbying for such inspections,
citing numerous problems and code violations - such as lack of common area lighting,
improper drainage, cracks and potholes in roadways, dirty laundry, pool and restroom
facilities, faulty utility systems, as evidence for the need for regular inspections. But 5
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years into the program, complaints from homeowners constituted the most problems.
This was because the majority of violations related to the mobilehome installations
(homes) on the lots as opposed to the park common areas.

Some of the complaints to the Committee from homeowners have included claims that:
1) park inspectors pick on certain homeowners by nailing them for inconsequential
violations;

2) inspectors cite some homeowners but not others for the same violations;

3) park managers accompany inspectors to point out which homeowners to cite;

4) inspectors not infrequently miss park common area violations or seldom follow-up
even where there is a park violation cited;

5) technical violations can give park owners the excuse to try to evict or at least harass
homeowners;

6) the cost to the homeowner of correcting violations which are cited in some cases, such
as carports which jut over the lot line or oversized storage sheds which have to be
removed and/ or rebuilt, can run into hundreds to sometimes thousands of dollars, money
which residents of limited means are hard pressed to find.

Program renewal:

Nevertheless, a number of mobilehome owners have favored the idea of extending the
program for another multi-year cycle or continuing it indefinitely. On February 18, 1997,
the Select Committee held a hearing in Sacramento concerning the Park Inspection
Program and its extension after 1998. As a result, Senate Bill 485 (Craven) was
introduced February 20, 1997 to extend the program one additional 7 year cycle until
2007. But many mobilehome owners wanted various program “reforms” before they
would support the bill. In order to assuage mobilehome park residents, many of whom
remained critical about the program, SB 485 was amended in the Assembly on June 24,
1997 to give homeowners more time to correct citations, eliminate the copy of resident
violations from being automatically provided by the enforcement agency to the park
owner/management, delete reference to “misdemeanor” in the initial notices, and provide
for a pre-inspection conference or orientation for homeowners by the enforcement
agency. Subsequently, HCD announced official opposition to SB 485, and the Assembly
Housing Committee made SB 485 a 2 year bill.

On November 17, 1997, another interim hearing by the Select Committee was held on the
issue in Pismo Beach (San Luis Obispo County) by Senator O’Connell, and no fewer
than five separate informal meetings among park owners, homeowners, HCD and local
government representatives followed during the first 6 months of 1998. A number of
issues and program changes were discussed at these meetings, including suggestions,
among others, that mobilehome owners be afforded a pre-inspection briefing, that time
limits be extended for correction of violations, and that some means be found to at least
provide homeowners with information about financial assistance or resources to correct
the violations. See Addendum # 3 for a complete list.
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HCD offered a number of different cost analysis projections, factoring in different
inspection cycles (7 year, 10 year, etc.) lengths and different suggestions for program
changes, all of which indicated some fee increase would be necessary to continue the
program. See Addendum # 4 on HCD March "98 7 year cost analysis projections.

At the last of the informal meetings, park owners finally indicated they would oppose
renewal of the program based upon fee increases which HCD were proposing for any
prospective new program. By July, the only thing parties could agree on was to extend
the existing program one more year and postpone the debate on extending the program
until 1999. SB 485 (Chapter 773 of the Statutes of 1998) was therefore passed and
signed to extend the inspection program only until January 1, 2000.

# ##
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Addendum # 1

The Mobilehome Park Inspection Program
January 26, 1999 Hearing Background Paper

Title 25
Generally, Title 25 regulations cover the following areas relating to mobilehome parks:

1) Administration and Enforcement: plans, applications, permits, fees, local enforcement.

2) Park General Requirements: lot identification, lot lines, park roadways, lighting, etc.

3) Electrical Requirements: distribution systems, lot service equipment, grounding, high
voltage, voltage drop, design requirements, feeder assemblies and receptacles, etc.

4) Fuel Gas Requirements: pipe size, meters, mechanical protection, shut-off valves,
connectors, LPG, etc.

5) Plumbing Requirements: drains, traps, venting, pipe size, sewage disposal, shut-off
valves, lot water service outlets, etc.

6) Fire Protection Standards: interface with local regulations, lot installations, hydrants,
hose couplings, etc.

7) Home Installations and Facilities: foundation systems, pier structures, tie-downs, roof
load, wind load, leveling, utility connectors, set-back requirements, exit facilities,
certificate of occupancy, etc.

8. Earthquake.Resistant Bracing Systems: permits, installation requirements, calculation
and test procedures, inspection, etc.

9. Permanent Buildings in the Park: construction, electrical, plumbing, fire protection,
local regulations, etc.

10. Mobilehome Accessory Structures: location, cabanas, awnings, carports, porches,
stairways, ramadas, storage cabinets, fences, etc.

11. Maintenance, Use and Occupancy Requirements: manager to be available, animals,
lot occupancy, lot identification, driveway access, roadways, rubbish, substandard homes
and accessories, emergency information, abatement, hearings, inspection, notice, etc.

12. Conferences & Appeals: informal conferences, appeals, review of local agency
enforcement orders.
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Addendum #2

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS WITH MOBILEHOME PARK

COUNTIES:

Alameda
Contra Costa
Del Norte
Imperial
Modoc
Monterey
Napa

CITIES:

Adelanto
Anaheim

Bell

Big Bear
Brisbane
Burbank .
Calistoga
Camarillo
Capitola
Carlsbad
Cathedral City
Chula Vista
Coachella
Cofax
Cudahy
Cypress

Daly City
Dana Point
Desert Hot Springs
Dinuba

INSPECTION AUTHORITY

—-—ix-

Riverside

San Bernardino
San Diego

San Mateo
Santa Barbara
Stanislaus
Tuolumne

El Cajon

El Monte
Escondido
Folsom
Fontana
Fountain Valley
Garden Grove
Greenfield
Hemet
Huntington Beach
Indio

Irvine

La Mesa

Lake Elsinor
Lancaster

Los Alamitos
Lynwood
Marina
Modesto
Needles



Norwalk
Oceanside
Orange
Patterson
Pittsburg
Placentia
Rancho Mirage
Redlands
Redondo Beach
Rialto
Riverside

San Bernardino
San Buenaventura
San Clemente
San Diego

San Jacinto
San Juan Capistrano
San Marcos
Santa Clara
Santa Maria
Santa Monica
Seal Beach
Sebastapol
South Gate
Taft

Union City
Victorville
Vista
Waterford
Yorba Linda



Addendum # 3

Major Issues and Program Changes
Discussed at 1998 Park Inspection Meetings

1. Frequency of Inspection — the program originally required parks to be inspected once every 5
years. For fiscal and other reasons, the Legislature extended the frequency of inspection to once
every 7 years in 1994, and added one additional final year in 1998. Some have suggested that
mobilehome parks be subject to a regular inspection every 5 years, some say 7 years or 10 years.

2. Program Fees — the current fee structure to support the program is $4 per space per year, $2 of
which is absorbed by the park and $2 of which may be passed through in the rent to
homeowners. HCD contends the program is currently under funded by about § 2 million a year.
The level of inspection activity is directly proportional to the amount of funding available. The
more features added to the program, the greater the cost, and vice versa. It is not clear what fee
increases are necessary to continue the current level of program inspection.

3. Local Government Participation — about one-third of the parks in the state are inspected for
HCD by local government agencies (city or county) by agreement with HCD. Although uniform
state requirements govern park health and safety, some local agencies have a marginally higher
or lower level of inspection than HCD. Some favor local governments continuing to have a role
in enforcing the park inspection, others say only HCD should enforce the program statewide.

4. Pre-inspection Orientation — currently an HCD inspection visits the park about 6 to 8 weeks
prior to an inspection to brief the park management and give them copies of an inspection
booklet to distribute to homeowners. Homeowners receive notice but are not often aware of the
exact date of an inspection. To improve communications, some have suggested that HCD have
an orientation meeting prior to the inspection to brief both the homeowners as well as park
manager prior to inspection on what to expect. HCD has suggested that videotapes would be a
cheaper substitute than full-fledged meetings. The feasibility or effectiveness of videotapes
versus an inspector orientation meeting has not been demonstrated.

5. Accompanving the Inspector — often, when an inspector walks through a park on the
inspection, the park manager accompanies the inspector to familiarize the inspector, sometimes
at the inspector’s request, with the park and park problems. Some homeowners feel that this can
bias what the inspectors sees or the homeowner’s who are cited, particularly if the management
has a grievance with certain homeowners. Some have suggested that a homeowner
representative, in parks where there is a mobilehome owner’s organization, should accompany
the inspector as well to voice the homeowner’s point of view and to act as a liaison between
homeowners and HCD in helping to resolve specific homeowner code violations.

6. Inspection Citations — there are four categories of violations — Category A - hazards requiring
immediate correction; B — less immediate health and safety risks requiring correction in 60 days;
C - lesser risks which are recorded but for which there is no time limit to correct; and D -
technical violations which are not health and safety risks that are neither cited or recorded.

Some have suggested that neither C’s or D’s should be cited or recorded, thus saving inspection
time and money.
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7. Notice of Violations — after a park has been inspected and violations noted by the inspector,
a notice of violation or citation is sent to respective homeowners and park owners responsible for
correcting those citations. The homeowner receives notice of his or her violations and the park
owner receives notice of the park’s common area violations as well as a copy of all homeowner
violations. Although all violations are a matter of public record, some homeowners feel that it is
unfair that park owners receive notice of homeowner violations but homeowners don’t receive
notice of park owner violations. Many also complain that park owners can use the notice to
harass vulnerable senior homeowners or threaten them with eviction. One suggestion would
permit park owners to receive copies of homeowner notices only in cases of Category A
violations or after expiration of the time which homeowners were given (60 days) to correct
other violation categories.

Another would require park violations not corrected after 60 days to be posted in a conspicuous
place in the park.

8. Time to Correct - current HCD practice is to give homeowners and park owners 60 days to
correct B & C violations. Depending upon the circumstances, HCD will give an extension of
time to correct these citations, sometimes up to another 30 days. Some homeowners,
particularly those who don’t have the financial resources to fix the violation, may have difficulty
correcting it within 60 days. Some have suggested that homeowners either be given more time
initially to correct B and C violations, such as 90 days, or another 60 day extension after the first
60 day deadline.

9. Clarity of Citations — HCD issues a notice of a violation citing the violation and the code
section violated. The notices are basically form letters, with the form language for particular
violations plugged into the notice where applicable. Sometimes the notice is more general as to
the violation — such as “damaged or bent awning support . . . in violation of Section . ..” The
awning referenced may actually be a carport with a dent in the cross brace. The homeowner is
not always sure what problem is being specifically cited without contacting the inspector
directly. The notices also warn of criminal penalties. Suggestions have included making the
notices more specific and less threatening and legalistic.

10. Low-Income Assistance - there are no state loans or grants to help low-income mobilehome
owners repair health and safety violations in mobilehome parks. Some local agencies have loan
or grant programs to help with housing rehabilitation, but HCD presently is not able to provide
this information to homeowners facing a citation. As a result, some homeowners are not able to
make the repairs and face possible eviction. Some have suggested a state loan or grant program
be inaugurated, or at least an HCD list of local sources of assistance be compiled, to help low-
income residents subject to park inspection citations.
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Mobilehome Park Inspection Program - Cost Analysis and Projections HCD

Division Clerical Department
Salary Benefits Admin Supervision Management Support OE&E Admin. Total Per Hour  Per Min.
$48,900.00 $15,648.00 $8,979.00 $5,440.00 $18,043.00 $8,811.00 $24,48500 $ 18,794.00 $149,100.00 $82.83 $1.38
32.80% 10.49% 6.02% 3.65% 12.10% 5.91% 16.42% 12.60%
HCD HCD Parks Spaces "A" Park "B" Park "C" Park "A"Resident "B" Resident "C" Resident
Parks Spaces Inspected ' Inspected Violations  Violations Violations Violations Violations Violations
3,503 237,998 2,569 178,671 272 137,267 13,304 316 228,428 122,684

The above information is from actual costs and production statistics that were available through September, 1997.

TODAY, Seven Year Cycle

Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee

Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years |In Statute
3.6 12.9 4.8 11.9 7.4 22.3 629 $ 86.84 $ 1241 $ 1746 $ 14.93

Option 7 (a) Seven Year Cycle, Qz:m and xoncism Correction of "A" Violations Only

Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee

Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute
3.60 6.45 2.40 1.19 3.70 4.46 21.80 $ 3010 $ 430 $ 605 $ 517

Option 7 (b) Seven Year Cycle, Citing "A" and "B" Violations; but, Requiring Correction of "A" Violations Only

Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee

Pre. Insp. . Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute|
3.60 9.68 3.60 1.19 3.70 17.84 39.61 § 5468 § 781 § 1099 § 9.40

Option 7 (c) Seven Year Cycle, Only a copy of the Resident's Final Notice of Violations Provided to the Park Operator

Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee

Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute
3.60 12.90 4.80 - 11.90 7.40 20.07 60.67 $ 83.76 § 1197 § 16.84 $ 14.40

3/6/98
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Addendum # 4

Mobilehome Park Inspection Program - Cost Analysis and Projections

Option 7 (J) Seven Year Cycle, ooauﬂz.zm Options 7 (a), 7 (c) and 7 (d)

HCD

o Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee
Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute
3.60 6.45 2.40 1.19 3.70 3.57 2091 § 2886 $ 412 § 580 $ 4.96
Option 7 (k) Seven Year Cycle, Combining Options 7 (b), 7 (c) and 7 (d)
Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee
Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute
3.60 9.68 3.60 1.19 3.70 14.45 36.22 $ 50.00 $ 714 §$ 1005 $ 8.60
Option 7 (I) Seven Year Cycle, Oo:._E:,:orOv:ozm 7 (c), 7 (d) and 7 (e)
Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee
Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute
0.00 17.20 3.84 11.90 7.40 9.03 49.37 § 68.16 § 9.74 § 13.70 $ 11.72
Option 7 (m) Seven Year Cycle, Combining Options 7 (c), 7 (d) and 7 (f)
Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee
Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 7 Years In Statute|
3.60 17.20 3.84 11.90 7.40 9.03 52.97 § 73.13 § 1045 $ 1470 § 12.57
Option 7 (n) Seven Year Cycle, ooau:::m Options 7 (c), 7 (d) and 7 (g)
Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee
Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space. Today 7 Years In Statute
7.20 17.20 3.84 11.90 7.40 12.04 59.58 § 8226 § 11.76 § 16.53 $ 14.14
Option 7 (o) Seven Year Cycle, Combining Options 7 (c), 7 (d) 7 (f) and only one reinspection at the end of 120 days.
Space Fee  Space Fee Space Fee
Pre. Insp. Periodic Report Re- Travel Support Total Cost Per Needed Needed Needed
Conf.  Inspection Writing Inspections Time Minutes Space Today 10 Years In Statute
3.60 17.20 3.46 7.93 4.93 8.13 45.25 § 62.47 $ 892 $ 1454 $ 11.73

3/6/98

-_X V-






TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY

JANUARY 26, 1999






SENATOR JOSEPH DUNN, CHAIR: Welcome to the first hearing of
the Senate Select Committee on Mobile and Manufactured Homes for 1999.

My name is Joe Dunn. I just introduced myself to most of you out there
and hopefully along the process this year, I'll get a chance to spend even more
time with you and hear about all the issues. I am serving as the new Chair of
the Committee. I also want to welcome an individual who has served on the
Committee before, Senator Jack O’Connell, sitting on the other side of John.
And, of course, I think everybody in the room knows John Tennyson, the
longtime consultant for the Committee, who will remain in that position this
year as well.

I know the Committee in the past has looked at the Mobilehome Park
Inspection program, especially under Senator Craven. We're going to take
another look at the issue today. Let me interrupt to introduce Senator Wes
Chesbro who has also just joined us as well.

For the benefit of everybody in the audience, there is a staff
background paper and agenda which I believe most everybody should have.
Please let us know if you don’t. It will give you almost everything you need to
know about the pfogram’s history, the park inspection program. We do have
other Members on the Committee. We do have some competing budget
subcommittee meetings today so we may have other Members come in and
out throughout the afternoon.

I realize that I am the new kid on the block, but I also know that the
negotiations have been ongoing for almost two years on whether the State
Park Inspection program should be continued. Last year, we had a one-year

reprieve and continued it, and now this year we have the difficult task of



addressing whether it should be continued forward from this point on.
Currently, the sunset provision hits January 1 of 2000.

We're going to hear today from mobilehome owners, park owners, state
and local officials, others concerning the park inspection programs. John
Tennyson, of course, has facilitated many informal discussions over the past
year among the homeowners, park owners, HCD representatives. But the
first part of this hearing will be a panel discussion by most of the
representatives who've been meeting with John on a regular basis on the key
issues and proposals that were brought up at those meetings. We will have
representatives from the Western Mobilehome Park Owners Association,
California Mobilehome Resource and Action Association, the Golden State
Mobilehome Owners League, and the Department of Housing and
Community Development.

While it's on the agenda, were going to give each of those
representatives approximately two minutes to give a general introductory
statement and then I will ask Mr. Tennyson to present some background on
each of the six major inspection issues that are going to be discussed by the
panel. The panel will then have about ten minutes to discuss those six items,
one by one, so that will take approximately one hour.

The second hour, we're going to open up to general testimony for the
audience, as in past hearings, following again what is on the agenda. I'd ask
that those of you who are going to testify in the second hour to please bear in
mind the comments made during the first hour and hopefully we can reduce
any repetition and just stick to new points, since obviously we want to get to
all of the issues as quickly as possible.

I also want to interrupt and welcome Assemblymember Lou Correa

who is joining us here as well. Lou.



So again, please keep your points as short as possible, although we’ll
try to give you as much time as you need, but just bear in mind let’s try to
avoid repetitious comments.

Unless we have any questions from the Members, without any further
delay, if we can ask the panelists to come forward at this point in time. And
once we get everybody seated, although I think pretty much everybody knows
each other, if you would identify yourself before we start into the introductory
comments, starting on my left, if we can start over here.

MR. BILL SCHWEINFURTH: I'm Bill Schweinfurth. I'm from
Better Community Management and we operate a number of mobilehome
parks.

MR. MAURICE PRIEST: My name is Maurice Priest and I'm the
legislative advocate for Golden State Mobilehome Owners League.

MR. JACK KERIN: My name is Jack Kerin. I'm with the
Department of Housing, Field Operations Manager.

MR. BRUCE STANTON: And I am Bruce Stanton, Corporate
Counsel for CMRAA, California Mobilehome Resource and Action
Association, which is a statewide league of mobilehome residents.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Welcome everybody. Everybody ready for
their two-minute introductory comments? Yes. Why don’t we start.

On my agenda, we've got Maury, you starting first. Okay. Why don’t
we go that route.

MR. MAURICE PRIEST: 1 want to thank Senator Dunn and
Members of the Committee for having this topic on your agenda today. The
inspection program is one that was supported by GSMOL several years ago
with Senator Jack O’Connell’s bill. Our reason for requesting inspections at
that time was because of the deteriorating conditions in many parks
throughout the state. In fact, park owners were complaining about the

number of failure to maintain common area lawsuits that were being



brought. And we felt that our members should not have to wait until the
lawsuit was proposed or started within their areas in order to correct serious
violations in the parks. And so when we first introduced the bill, it was to
inspect the common areas of mobilehome parks and it was in the early
process of that bill when the park owners, through Western Mobilehome
Association, said, wait a minute, if there are poor conditions in parks and if
there are health and safety violations on individual homes, such as loose,
electrical wires, or other problems that are actually on the homes themselves,
shouldn’t the inspectors also be able to cite violations on mobilehomes while
they’re inspecting park common areas? And that’s a hard argument to fight,
frankly. If we're interested in the welfare of the residents, which we are,
then why shouldn’t all potential violations that could affect their health and
well-being be addressed? So the bill was amended during that process so that
the inspections performed either by the cities, if they chose to assume that
function, or if they did not, then the default position would be with the State
of California, Department of Housing and Community Development; their
inspectors would inspect parks. And when we first started, I believed that
the inspection was going to be, in the first proposal of the bill, every four
years, each park in the state would be inspected. And then I believe even in
that initial legislation, it was expanded to five years. Since that time,
because of the backlog and the amount of work involved, HCD had requested
that the amount of time between park inspections even be lengthened so that
we're basically, we're looking at seven, eight years now. This has been
somewhat frustrating to our members who seldom see an inspection being
done in their parks.

Frankly, without getting ahead of the agenda, let me just kind of close
my introductory remarks by saying that we believe there is still a valid
purpose to be served by park inspections. The question right now is, at what

cost, and that’s what we’ll be focusing on or be most concerned about. We
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believe that an inspection of mobilehome parks does assist our members but
it begs the question. If the inspections are not going to be done except once
every eight years, and if each of those homeowners has to contribute a larger
amount of money to support the inspection costs, then are they really
deriving a benefit from that work? And so those are some of our concerns
that we have. And, of course, when the topics come up during the discussion,
we’ll be able to share with you some of our suggestions.

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Bruce.

MR. BRUCE STANTON: Thank you. Thank you very much, Senator
Dunn, for the opportunity to participate today. And I'd just like to say, as a
representative of CMRAA that participated during last year’s various
meetings and so forth, that I am extremely pleased that John Tennyson is
attached to the committee still, and I think that what he did last year was
Herculean in his efforts to try to pull together the strands of all these various
issues that we're going to talk about today. My voice is still recovering from
the flu, so I apologize.

CMRAA’s position, quite simply is, this program has to continue.
There is too much good that this program has done and can do with some
certain changes to be made, for sure, for the entire program to be thrown out,
and we essentially don't want to throw the baby out with the bath water
here. The residents simply derive too much benefit from the program. We've
heard that there are concerns, and I've encountered them personally as an
attorney sometimes defending evictions about park owners using HCD
citations for improper harassment or eviction purposes. In general, there’s
some legitimate concern there, and I think we can deal with that by
narrowing the focus of what the program is all about and by eliminating some
of the more minor categories of violations. I also think that some of the

things discussed in Committee last year, which I know we’ll be getting into



today, will go a long way towards protecting the residents from many
program abuse, if you will, that park owners could perpetrate without getting
rid of the program altogether. And in general CMRAA favors looking at a far
more narrow scope for the program in the future, one that would hopefully
necessitate a zero fee increase or a very small fee increase and would
hopefully free up the dollars that have been used before in a more shotgun
approach to go all over the state, to be more narrowly focused where they
need to be, and to also focus on pre-inspection communication and education
before the inspector even gets on site. We believe the program can definitely
continue to work and that we can in essence take this to sort of like a level
two after the initial program has done the shotgun and gone all over the
state. Now is the time to more precisely focus it.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Bill Schweinfurth.

MR. BILL SCHWEINFURTH: Thank you for inviting me.
Appreciate the opportunity. I can barely say my name in two minutes so I've
provided some written comments.

My company operates 18 mobilehome parks throughout the state, about
5,000 spaces, which means about 3,300 spaces are inspected by HCD. We
have had a really good experience with the Park Inspection program. When
the legislation was enacted, we did our own pre-inspection. We actually hired
a retired HCD inspector to help us find violations and we’ve talked to the
residents about it and educated them so we were really well prepared when
the inspections came and were very supportive of seeing the program
continue.

I just wanted to give you some idea of what a typical, well-run
mobilehome park gets from HCD after an inspection is done. This is our park
in Simi Valley, a 221-space park. These pages describe the park violations,
which there were almost none, and these pages describe the resident

violations. All of these were very, very minor violations. They were all taken



care of and there’s been no enforcement action necessary whatsoever. This
was a 1996 inspection.

SENATOR DUNN: That’s one park?

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: That’s one park. The Department, I think,
has done a much better job over the years of narrowing the scope already,
although I think they can go further in exercising their discretion in the field.
Two years later, this is a 242-space park, which, if I had to bet, I would say,
would have more violations than this one. This one’s located in the City of
San Pedro. And once again, these are the park violations and these are the
resident violations. So that’s kind of how it works in a typical, well-run
mobilehome park.

We discovered, particularly doing the pre-inspection program that we
did, and then working with the residents in HCD during our inspections, that
the cooperation between the manager on site and the residents actually
improved because we had to communicate with the residents more about
what was going to happen. Some of our managers even tried to intercede on
behalf of a resident when they were being cited for something that was very
minor.

We have not had any of these friction points or people trying to take
advantage of other people that you see in some other record before you. In
fact, I checked our records. For 3,300 spaces in eight or nine years, we have
never sent one eviction notice to any resident for not following through on
correcting an HCD violation. And I talked to our managers this last week
and I can’t count on one hand the number of seven-day notices we’ve sent to a
resident for failing to comply, which may mean that our residents are really
good about correcting their violations.

I think, even in our parks, which I consider to be very well maintained,
I think the program benefited us a lot. It made us talk to the residents; I
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certainly understand Title XXV a little bit better. And we would support
perhaps a seven- or eight-year extension of the program. We do want to
make it more user friendly, particularly for the residents. I'd like to make it
more user friendly for me because I don’t really need to get the mail. This,
and I think we have some good suggestions, some of which the other
members have made to Mr. Tennyson already, and those are in my written
comments.

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you.

Jack.

MR. JACK KERIN: Thank you. My name is Jack Kerin, Department
of Housing. Thank you for the opportunity to present some information and
to participate in the panel discussion today.

The Department feels that the program is a good program and has
achieved some good results. In the period during the inspection program, we
have cited over 500,000 violations and we have corrected many of those and
many serious violations. We really do believe that the health and safety of
the public and the residents has been improved as a result of this inspection
program. And I also believe strongly that the correction of hazardous
violations has had a positive impact on the value of the homes and the value
of the park property themselves. I mean, it’s pretty common to see when the
park starts to go downhill or homes downhill. It has a very adverse effect on
the neighborhood and on the neighbors.

During the program, we've always tried to gain voluntary compliance.
One of the reasons our costs have increased is the time it takes to get a park
or a space into compliance has been much greater than was anticipated in the
original program, and consequently our costs have been significant as a
result of that and sometimes we are forced to take legal action. We've taken

a number of cases to the district attorney and processed them, and that’s very



costly and very time consuming and that has all added to the cost of our
operation.

As you've heard, during the course of the program, it’s been an evolving
inspection program, as suggestions, as improvements have been made either
through legislation or through recommendations of the park owners and the
residents. We have made changes in the way we issue notices and try to
make them more user friendly, if you will. In certain areas, we have some
legislative mandates that we do need to look at if we're going to make some
additional changes, as far as who gets the notice and this kind of thing. This
1s something we didn’t have the power to do within the Department.

I think there’s other areas that we've talked about in some of our
meetings mentioned here. As far as getting the information out for pre-
inspection conferences, this is something we started in the very beginning
with the idea, that if we can tell people what we're looking for and if we can
let them know what the inspection entails, that maybe our greatest dream
will come true and we’ll make an inspection and there won’t be any
violations. We haven’t reached that yet and that’s really our goal, is to
minimize the need to write citations. And we continue to work, and we will
continue to work, on how we can get that information out ahead of time and
to make it more effective.

And the other thing we need to look at is consistency, consistency
between inspectors, consistency between jurisdictions, where we have local
enforcement and the Department’s enforcement. And really where we would
need consistency, I think, is program expectations, what service do we want
and what is that cost. This is, I guess, where we’re at now, what can we
provide and what it’s going to cost to provide that.

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you, each of you, for your comments here,
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I've asked Mr. John Tennyson to give us some of the background on the
six issues that we're then going to turn over to panel discussion. Without
anything further, John.

MR. JOHN TENNYSON: Very quickly, last year, when I was asked
by Senators Craven and ‘O’Connell to facilitate meetings among the park
owners, the Department of Housing, and the homeowner groups and local
representatives with regard to these issues, there were a number of issues
that came up, in addition to the.question of fee increases, and they are not
mutually exclusive because every time you add something to the program, it’s
going to drive up the costs. Of course, when you take something out of the
program, it will decrease the cost.

The Department, and I believe, and I don’t know what their current
position on this is, but as of April 1998, the Department’s position was that
the program was over one-half million dollars in deficit every year. It's a self-
supporting program and the fees were not adequate to support the level of
inspection that the Department was conducting at that time. So the first
issue will be discussion of fee increases, whether there should be fee
increases, what the position of the various representatives here would be in
that regard. And so why don’t we start with Jack.

MR. KERIN: The Department, as you mentioned, John, has to run
this program within the revenue provided by the inspection program. We've
been unable to do that based on one of the items I had indicated. The time it
takes for our inspections or get compliance has taken longer and has cost
more than we anticipated.

One of the things we need to look at, I guess, before we do the cost, 1s
exactly what are we going to provide. There’s been talk of, we do now, we
have four levels of violations — A, B, C, and D — D being technical, C being a
violation but not really severe, not enough to follow up on or take any action,

and B, more serious, and then of course A being imminent hazards.
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Currently, we write all of these violations down. We just don’t follow
up on the bottom too and we don’t require they be corrected. However, we do
follow up on Bs and Cs — excuse me — As and Bs. But writing all those and
looking at all those takes times. So if we're going to cut down, which has
been one of the suggestions, focus on the more serious violations, then we can
do an inspection faster. I don’t know that compliance will come faster
because those are the kind that end up in court sometimes and again there’s
the cost there. So it’s tough to say what the costs will be until we really
determine exactly which level of service that we're asked to provide. The key
is that we’re going to add something to it, a more enhanced educational
program or pre-inspection orientation at the beginning. Unless we can
realize some real significant time savings, it’s going to cost more to do that.
It certainly will be more user friendly and it’s something we’d love to do but
still time takes money. So I think from our point of view, we would like to
have an efficient running program, that it’s not oppressive, not intimidating
to the residents. That’s not our job. But we do have to tone that down to
what we can afford, based on what the industry is willing to pay.

SENATOR DUNN: Others want to comment on the issue?

Go ahead.

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: I have several comments. It just seems to
me logically, that since we’re nearing the end of the first round of inspections,
and if the program continues, we're going to go into the second round. At
Friendly Village, Simi, you’re going to go in and you’re going to maybe find
that many violations this time around, okay? That just seems to me to be
logical, maybe not everywhere, but I think the number that you're going to
find the second time around is going to be less. I think there’s going to be
general agreement amongst the panelists that we should dispense with

writing up these minor C violations and these hyper-technical D violations.
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SENATOR DUNN: Anybody disagree with that, on the panel, at
least?

MR. KERIN: I don't disagree with that. I would just like to point out
the pitfall of doing that is that it’s very difficult to make an inspection and
not write something up and then respond to a complaint from a neighbor or
from a far corner or from a resident on the same issue which they seem to
think is very important at that particular time, so I think we need some kind
of consensus, that if it’s not sufficient to write up and pursue during an
inspection, they should not expect that we would pursue that on a complaint
either.

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: I think that inevitably there will be some
changes in technology, like those that have happened over the last 15 years,
that are going to control costs.

Finally, one of my suggestions, and I think the other panelists would
agree with this too, is I have no interest whatsoever as a park owner, or very
little interest, in getting copies of the first violation notices that go to
residents. I am interested, however, in getting copies of the second notice
that says, hey, you haven’t complied and you need to fix either an A or a B
violation. So for the first time around, the Department doesn’t have to send
me any of this. And the second time around, I assume that the As and Bs are
going to be again a stack like this so that’s a lot of paper and postage and
manpower that I think can be saved. So those are areas where I see the
Department being able to save money.

The only thing that in my mind would cost more is that I'm a big
proponent of having the Department do this video that we can use in the
orientation meetings. It's hard to read Title XXV and understand what
youre being cited for. But if you see a picture of a railing with somebody
telling you this is illegal and this is how you're going to get hurt if you don’t

fix it, that that has a more dramatic impact. I know it costs something to
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make a video; but, you know, if we had a video sitting in the clubhouse,
residents could come watch it at their convenience, they’'d really understand
what it was they were facing and I think it would really make the process a
lot more user friendly. So those would be my suggestions.

MR. PRIEST: I like Bill's suggestions too about the video. I think
that’d be very, very effective in eliminating some of the apprehension and
fear that some of our members have when an inspector comes over.

I think that in terms of the costs, getting right back to the financial
issue, many of our members, I mean $2 right now, the part of the cost that’s
passed through to them, the park owner takes $2 of the $4 fee; he passes
through $2 to the residents. That may not sound like a lot of money. It's an
annual fee, not a monthly fee that’s collected. But for some of our members
who are on Social Security — widows, widowers, that type of thing — along
with other costs that are increasing, you know, rents in many parks, cost of
living in general, those other adjustments usually eat up more than, will eat
up any increase they may have received in Social Security. So they’re not
really able to keep up with some of the other changes in the cost of living.

If GSMOL was going to be able to receive the blessings of our
membership on a fee increase, it would have to be in the context of what
changes are being made to the program. And just to follow up on some of the
items that Bill mentioned, I don’t see any need for, if their program is
renewed, I don’t see a need for the HCD inspectors to put at the top of the list
a revisit to the 18 parks that Bill Schweinfurth happens to own where he
says that the violations have been very few, miniscule, primarily the C & D
violations.

In other words, if one way that we could keep any increased cost to a
minimum, perhaps a dollar increase instead of doubling the fee. You know,

you tell someone, well, it’s taken us eight years to hopefully inspect every
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park in the state. Now we want to double your fees so we can do it even
better and they wonder what they're getting.

If there was going to be a dollar annual increase and in the first year,
there would be no re-inspection of those parks that had not received any A
and B violations, for example, and only C and D and those things, I think
that would help focus on the areas where there are greater needs, you know,
where there are more violations. I think that any of the parks that have been
prosecuted as a result of HCD inspections and a referral is made to the
district attorney’s office, the city attorney’s office, I think perhaps those that
had been known and proven to have serious violations could be up for a re-
inspection. In other words, narrow the scope of what you're inspecting during
those first few years and then you can get back into the more routine or
better-maintained parks to use those funds.

So that's what I would be trying to consider. In other words, what
benefits, what improvements, have we made to the inspection program that
we can actually explain to our members when we're asking them for a fee
increase and not just an increased fee for the sake of continuing a program
that they may not have had much experience with or they got a citation, as
Bill has mentioned here, that really didn’t make it clear to them that there
wouldn’t be follow-up on some of those first, you know, the C and D level.
Some of them, when they received the violations, were of the opinion that
every, single correction had to be made on that and we're worried about it,
where they were going to get the funds to make those corrections without
knowing that the C and D categories weren't going to be followed up on at all
and really didn’t have to be made.

SENATOR DUNN: Well, if I understand what you’re saying, one of
your suggestions, following up on what Bill had said, is that you've got a long
history of few or no violations, or certainly no serious violations. Their

inspection rate, if I can use the term, is much, much lower than somebody
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who has a serious violation. Now they go into a heavier inspection schedule.
Do I hear what...

MR. PRIEST: Right.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay.

MR. PRIEST: That’s right.

MR. KERIN: I understood, though, that we would still inspect every
park within whatever period of time that was established. I don’t see the
savings there. I think there might be a savings if, in fact, they meet a certain
level that we can determine without a full inspection that an inspection is not
necessary. If we have some discretion, then I think it would be a cost savings
if we’re just putting in year four as opposed to year two. I don’t know that
we're going to save a lot.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay.

MR. STANTON: I'd just like to echo the comments of both GSMOL
and WMA here. This program needs some improvement, especially in terms
of the video, pre-inspection communication. We're not going to be able to
improve this program and keep the fees where they are, and we all know that
we're facing a real crucible when it comes to fee increases. So it seems to me
that the only logical step is to tone the program down, and I firmly believe we
should not be inspecting parks as part of the program that have had no
demonstrated history of problems. I think we can develop some regulations
and guidelines which would determine which parks we go back to, and we
could always leave open any parks where the residents are themselves
requesting inspections because they are perceiving and experiencing the
problems.

The second level of inspection should definitely be far more focused,
and we should be looking at the repeat offenders and places where we had
problems before, because that’s more than likely where you’re going to have

problems again. The large institutional park owners with very well-run
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portfolios shouldn’t have to be inspected where we would burn the fees to do
that, quite frankly.

SENATOR DUNN: Before I go on, I want to welcome
Assemblywoman Ellen Corbett who has just joined us as well.

From the panelists, at least, 'm not hearing anybody saying we want to
scrap the program altogether. I'm not hearing that.

Okay. Next issue.

MR. TENNYSON: The next issue involves a pre-inspection briefing
which has been touched upon with references to the video. The issue here
involves the problem where many mobilehome owners don’t even know that
there’s an inspection going to take place. Even though they received a notice,
they may have misplaced it, forgotten about it, maybe they didn’t receive it.
And the first time they — and they were out of the park when the inspection
took place; they were out of town; the first time that they know about it is
when they receive a citation and this has caused some consternation. So
some of the ideas that were explored in some of these informal meetings
included having a pre-inspection orientation meeting where all the
homeowners, as well as the park managers, would receive a briefing by the
inspector, or someone from the enforcement agency, to orient them as to what
is expected and what is going to happen. In that context, the Department
came up with the idea last year of the video as a substitute for that, although
there are some people who feel, that although a video is better than nothing,
it doesn’t answer questions that might come up from residents.

So why don’t we start with Jack in terms of where we are with the
video and your views with regard to the video versus an actual, live body
making a presentation.

| SENATOR DUNN: Jack, before you do that, for all the attendees,
does everybody know what we're referring to when we're talking about the

video? Do we need any further explanations? Raise your hand.
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Okay.

MR. KERIN: It’s kind of interesting to be talking on this subject.
When we first came up with the inspection program, it was the Department
that was adamant, if you will, about having a pre-inspection conference and
make sure people knew what to expect and whatever. Obviously, we didn’t
get quite as far with that as we thought we would. As far as the video
presentation, that, I think, would be a good step.

When the program started — this is something I've been thinking about
— when the program first started, because it was something new for local
government, we did a series of regional meetings around the state involving
local government and anybody else who wanted to attend. To augment the
video, perhaps we could do those, if we can do them on a regional basis. We
can’t afford to go out and do a park-by-park and this kind of thing. We just
don’t have the time and the staff to do that. But we could do some regional
meetings, perhaps with the park owners’ representatives, the mobilehome
organizations could attend, and then kind of take that information back as
well. And I think we certainly could do that and I think that might enhance
the video for those who feel that that’s not quite enough. In fact, it might
even help them understand the video and be able to take it back to their
membership. So I might add that can be something we can do, in addition to
the video, I think. -

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Further comments on the issue?

MR. PRIEST: 1 think it’s an excellent idea for the pre-inspection
briefing and I think, that even if HCD can’t do the personal briefings, you
know, at the park level, we do the regional level; between WMA and its
member parks, GSMOL, its member parks, CMRAA, you know, its parks, I
think that a video could be developed which incorporates the most frequently
asked questions that their personnel have received in doing, you know,

they've done hundreds of them by this time. The video can incorporate the
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most frequently asked questions and the responses to those questions. It
could also be made available through the parks, through GSMOL, through
CMRAA’s organization, and those people who could never get to a meeting
because of their work schedule, could at least check out the video from the
park manager’s office or from the GSMOL chapter, view it on their own VCR
at home, and have access to information that they probably would never be
able to reach at a meeting because of their work schedule or medical
appointments, you know, all the other conflicts that can get in the way. So I
think that there’s enough participation with the industry, both for the
consumers and the park owners, that a video could be utilized very well and
take care of a lot of the preliminary questions, anyway, that are asked by
people who are going to be inspected.

MR. STANTON: I know, CMRAA President, Dave Hennessy, is
absolutely committed to utilizing whatever we can within our organization to
show the video and have our own presentations and meetings and seminars
on the issue where HCD may not even be present with those tools so that we
could, you know, spread the word about it.

MR. PRIEST: Because that was going to be my question. I mean, we
can all come up here theoretically with a great video; but if nobody watches
it, what have we done, we've accomplished nothing.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay.

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: 1 really have nothing further to add. I
mean, there will be instances where there’s no VCR to watch a video. I think,
if you had one piece of paper with our story on two sides — maybe it’s pink,
yellow, what not — co-written by all the organizations so everybody can see,
well, GSMOL is on there, you know, that must be right, or WMA, that goes
through the same, common questions and the timeline is what happens when
the inspector visits the property, I think that could be useful too, as simple as

it sounds.
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SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Any other comments? No?

MR. TENNYSON: Okay. The next issue is regarding the elimination
of C and D violations. As has been alluded to, there are four categories of
violations. A’s, of course, are the most serious, immediate hazards, all the
way down to D’s, which are technical. These are classified by the
Department of Housing and Community Development. Theyre not, as I
understand it, written in stone. The CMRAA and others have proposed that
C and D violations can be eliminated. One problem perhaps with that is
whether or not we need some statutory changes in order to do that.

Comment?

MR. PRIEST: I would agree with the proposal to eliminate those C
and D violations. It has been very confusing for GSMOL members who
receive the letter and even, I know that HCD has revised those letters.
They’ve tried to make it clear in the wording that certain things are technical
violations that may not be revisited. But for many of our members, that’s
still a confusing point. When they get a letter saying these are your
violations, their belief and interpretation of that letter is that all of them
listed on the letter have to be corrected. And I think, that by eliminating C
and D, that the least serious violations, that’s a step forward.

MR. STANTON: Yes. If I could just read from the Violation
Correction Code Clarification Handout that we got during the meetings last
year, I think it’s best illustrated, when you look at category types. For
example, guardrails and handrails, you've got missing or loose components.
That's a B. Under C, “reasonably safe and maintained but technically in
violation.” You know, what does that mean, not only to the average person
but even to us, you know, on the bureaucratic level, if you will, that are
trying to grapple with this? I think that, although it may be a task that
requires some time, it’s unavoidable that we're going to have to rewrite some

of this stuff. Ijust don’t see any way around that.
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SENATOR DUNN: Bill.

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: I have nothing to add to it.

MR. TENNYSON: Any objection to anything?

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: No, not at all.

MR. KERIN: I have a comment. I don’t think we have any problem
with the C and D violations being eliminated. Our real purpose initially of
including the technical ones, D were spelled out in statute that we show and
how we should handle those — the C were those that were given
authorization, I believe, about two years into the program to not follow up on
and we could cite them and do no re-inspection.

One of the advantages of citing them was, they are judgment calls in
many cases, whether they're B’s or whether they're C’s. And one of the things
we thought about putting it on the record, at least we wouldn't have
somebody coming by the next time making a different call on the same
subject. However, the problem that it has caused, I believe, outweighs the
benefit that we hope for, so I don’t think we have any strong feelings about
that.

SENATOR DUNN: Any other comments on that issue? Onto the
next.

MR. TENNYSON: Okay. The next issue is with regard to who
accompanies the inspector.

Currently, when an inspector goes into a park, he or she normally goes
through the park about six weeks in advance, interviews, or, rather, briefs
the park manager, provides the manager with handouts, which the manager
can then provide to the residents, as well as the handout for the park, and
then about six or eight weeks later returns to do the inspection. Sometimes
the inspector requests the park manager to accompany him or her; sometimes

the park manager just accompanies them.
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This has created some complaints to the Committee and was the
subject of discussion last year with regard to whether, in some cases, the
park manager is prejudicing the inspection by pointing out certain people in
the park that the manager doesn’t like who perhaps have violations but
ignoring other residents or perhaps even common-area violations. There was
some discussion about a homeowner representative, where there 1s a
homeowner organization accompanying the inspector, as well in those cases
where the park manager accompanies the inspector. So that is another issue
for discussion.

MR. PRIEST: At the roundtable discussions that Mr. Tennyson
arranged with HCD and members of the mobilehome industry, one of our
suggestions from GSMOL was that the residents, the homeowners living in
the park, have the right to designate a representative who would be able to
accompany the inspector, just as park managers frequently accompany the
inspector. And the homeowner representative would not be there to tell the
inspector what to do or how to do his job but to monitor what is being done.
There’s a lot of suspicion in some parks; they believe, that because the
manager’s been the only one accompanying, as Mr. Tennyson indicated, some
of them think that perhaps the GSMOL president, chapter president, is being
singled out for an extra special inspection or, you know, extra emphasis is
being given. And I think, that by having a homeowner representative
accompany them, that person can help field questions from the neighbors,
from the residents in the park, and say, well, yes, all of these homes were
inspected or today they covered this number. We know that they inspected
park common areas as well as homes located within the mobilehome park.
And so I think it’s just a good policy to have both sides represented in
" attendance so at least they can take notes and observe for themselves what
has taken place during the inspection and then be a resource to the other

neighbors.
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MR. SCHWEINFURTH: My view is that it ought to be a little simpler
than that. I don’t particularly relish having the inspector ask my manager to
spend a day-and-a-half going through 300 home sites because our managers
just typically tag along. And if the inspector asks a question, they try to
answer it. I would think that the manager ought to go with the inspector
when the common areas are inspected and the residents and their
representatives, if they want, go with the inspector when the homes are
inspected. I can’t imagine that a manager has a whole lot to offer to the
inspector when he’s just inspecting a home site and a home. So I just think
they ought to be kept separate, their separate responsibilities, and that’s how
it ought to work.

SENATOR DUNN: And, Bill, do I hear no objection to the suggestion
that there be a designated resident representative to accompany the
inspector?

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: When he does the home site inspection or
home inspections, I have no problem with it.

SENATOR DUNN: Other comments?

MR. STANTON: My only other comment would be that, of course, if
we have pre-inspection meetings, video, you've got organization on the part of
the residents, youre going to be in a much better position to deal with all
these issues because the residents, as they come together in a group and
they’re looking at their appointed designee, can say, hey, make sure you tell
the inspector about this, this, and this, the communication is just going to go
a long way to solving the problem. We would have no objection to either
scenario there.

MR. PRIEST: Just to follow up on Bill's comment too, because some
residents have requested an inspector come to the park because of a common-
area concern, I think, that with our proposal, we would still .want the

homeowner representative to be able to accompany the inspector, even for
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common-area inspections. And for the same reason, when we get to the other
issue about who receives notices and how those are distributed, there’s been
some inequality as the law is written right now, in terms of who receives
notices. In other words, the homeowners, the park residents, have never
received from HCD a notice of park common areas that had been cited. And
when they received their copies of these letters citing a half a dozen things
that are wrong with their home and they don’t receive a similar letter or a
copy or even anything posted on the bulletin board advising them of what
may have been deficient in the park owner’s common areas, it does cause
them to believe that it’s been perhaps a lopsided inspection, too much focus
on the residents. So I think we can overcome that and one way to do it would
be to allow the homeowner a designee to accompany on the common-area
inspections as well as homeowner.

SENATOR DUNN: Other comments on the issue?

MR. KERIN: Yes. The Department doesn’t have any strong feelings
about, you know, allowing anyone to accompany the inspector on the
inspection, other than the time it takes and what I think we need to spell out
the roles so we don’t spend a lot more time on the inspection. Actually, it’s to
our benefit, if somebody is there and we can explain what we are doing; or if
there’s a question, we can answer it at that time, if that’s the park owners’
representative, the manager, which we relied on heavily over the years to
explain this in detail when the notices come. And some of them are very good
about it. Some choose not to accompany us at all. So it’s going to be a
different scenario in each park. But if there is a designated person they wish
to accompany, we don’t have a problem with that.

MR. TENNYSON: Jack, some of your inspectors have indicated to us
in the past that, perhaps, it would be better, if nobody accompanied them
because they’'d be able to get the job done faster.

Do you have any comment on that?
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MR. KERIN: I think that’s probably true. But when I get the initial
inspection done quickly we may not get the — the follow-ups may take longer.
So I think there’s some benefit. And there is a concern about the amount of
time that is going to add to the inspection. This whole thing boils down to
how many minutes it takes and how much it costs and that’s one of the
things we keep wrestling with.

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: 1 think, if we improve the orientation
meeting on the front end in this communication, it might not be a bad idea
not to have anybody go with the inspector but the inspector has the number
of the manager, the number of the homeowners association president, or the
GSMOL or CCMRA chapter head; and if he has questions, he can call that
person.

SENATOR DUNN: Other comments?

Okay. Let’s move onto the other issue, John.

MR. TENNYSON: Okay. The next issue was alluded to a few
moments ago by Mr. Priest, and, that is, who receives the citation notice.
Currently, after an inspection, the homeowners receive a notice from the
enforcement agency with regard to their citations. The park owner receives a
notice with regard to the park owner’s citation, or the management does,
from the enforcement agency, and the park also receives copies of the
homeowners’ violations. This has caused some consternation among the
homeowners who feel that in some cases the park owners can use these
notices, these initial notices, as a tool for harassment and in a few cases
‘alleged attempts to evict the homeowners, since one of the reasons that you
can evict someone from a mobilehome park is because of a violation of the
law. So there have been some proposals to eliminate the notices to the park
owner of the homeowner’s violations. There’s been talk about requiring
notices of the park owner’s violations to be posted, so we would ask for some

comment on those suggestions.
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MR. PRIEST: 1 think, that on behalf of GSMOL, that when we
eliminate the C and D, you know, the least serious citations on the residents
of the park, and they receive a violation in the A and B category -- that means
hazardous or very serious -- I think, that even in that category, they should
have at least 30 or 60 days, depending upon the violation. Obviously, if it’s a
loose wire, HCD regulates the time and makes it, you know, a shorter period
of time. But on A and B, if they have time to make the corrections that
they’ve been cited for, before a copy of that notice goes to the park owner -- as
Mr. Schweinfurth said at the beginning of the hearing, he didn’t really want
to know all of the C and D violations. That’s what this stack of papers is, you
know, the least important violations that the residents may have.

So before our requested change would be, that before park owner
receives any notice of an A and B violation against a resident of the park,
that the resident first have had the opportunity to make the correction. It
would only be the second piece of correspondence from HCD to the
homeowner saying you have not yet corrected this serious or hazardous
violation. It would only be at that time that the park owner would receive a
copy, so that would be an amendment to the current statute.

Also, in the same light, we would request — we’re not asking for copies
of the park citations in those least important categories to come
automatically to the residents, okay? I think that’s overkill. But in the more
serious categories, if the park owner has not made the correction within the
time given by HCD, our request would be that the park owner be required to
post a complete copy of that citation on the bulletin board in the common
areas, if they have a club house or next to the office, in a conspicuous place,
just as they post the name of the mobilehome park owner and the phone
number now. There are comparable state laws that exist now, but that be
required to be posted on the bulletin board for 90 days so that the residents

can at least become aware of some of the citations that exist and have not
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been corrected. And it’s not trying to increase the tensions. It’s just to share
some of the information that has not been given. One of the handouts that
was on the back table today were the lists of, you know, the maintenance and
inspection activity, and I wasn't aware of any of this information on park
prosecutions because the inspection program, until we had the roundtable
meetings that Mr. Tennyson arranged for, and I put some of that information
in the GSMOL “Californian” and got it out because none of our members, I
say none, the overwhelming majority, weren't aware of any type of active
citation or prosecution of park owners. And I think the more that that
information is shared with our members, the more supportive they’ll be of an
inspection program, if they believe it’s being equally applied.

MR. SCHWEINFURTH: I'm definitely in favor of not making
unnecessary copies. And like I said earlier, I don’t want to receive copies of
the first go-around of the citations of the residents. It’s only the uncorrected
A and B violations that we're concerned about, as the park operators, the
people that actually own the land, that we have some notice. And if HCD
wants us to get involved or we need to get involved, then we will at that time.

I guess personally, and I'm not WMA -- I'm just one operator — I
personally, because I don’t think it’s ever going to happen to me — I don’t have
a problem with posting something on the bulletin board - if it’s an
uncorrected violation after so many days, post it until it’s fixed or 90 days or
whatever. I'm also somebody who tries to improve the image of the industry
and sometimes postings like that can be misused. People publish them in
newsletters when it’s maybe nobody’s fault and so I'm just a little sensitive to
that. But as an individual, I don’t really have a problem with that.

MR. STANTON: Let me just add that it was my sense during the
1998 meetings that park owners were not as favorably disposed towards not
receiving that first notice, as Bill has indicated. I'm gratified to hear him

indicate that and I think we probably can move a long way down the road on
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this part of it if in fact that position is co-opted by park owners because we
would certainly be in favor of that.

MR. KERIN: I only have one comment.

In the case of an A violation, whether it be on the site or in the park
common area, it may be necessary for us to involve the park in order to get it
corrected because that’s a serious violation. It’d be an imminent hazard to
people so that maybe, in those rare instances, we may want to notify the park
that this is a situation that exists on lot so-and-so, as well as ordered to be
corrected within 24 hours or two days or whatever, depending on how serious
it is. So I think we would want the option to do that when necessary but it’s
not something we’re going to issue a 30- or 60-day notice on, that’s not
necessary to make those copies, but it’s something that really has to be taken
care of very quickly. It may be necessary for the park management to get
involved to facilitate that in that case.

SENATOR DUNN: Mr. Stanton.

MR. STANTON: I think we concur with that because I think there’s
only been a couple hundred A violations over in the course of the program. I
mean, you're talking about things like gas leaks and imminent hazards.

SENATOR DUNN: It would seem like I don’t hear any real opposition
to that type of proposal.

MR. TENNYSON: Lastly, the issue of whether the homeowners
and/or the park owner needs more time to fix the violations. Right now, I
believe the policy of the Department, anyway, is to give those that are cited
60 days and then they come back and take a look at it. And in some cases,
they may extend that period if there is a good reason to do so. Some people
feel, particularly homeowners feel, and those on the lower economic scale feel,
that in some cases where they have a violation, such as the stairs that have
to be rebuilt or a shed that has to be moved, it may cost several hundred

dollars or maybe $500 or $600. They don’t have that money, and they need
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more time to find the resources to fix the problem. There have been
suggestions up to 120 days, rather than 60 days, to fix some of these
violations.

Comment on that?

SENATOR DUNN: Why don’t we start over on this end.

MR. STANTON: This is a real important feature of the program for
us, more time to comply. The mobilehome industry is such that it can be
extremely difficult for mobilehome owners to find contractors who can do this
kind of work. I mean, it’s not nearly like general contracting, although some
general contractors would do it. But mobilehome contractors tend to be a
much more fluid and hard-to-define group of folks. And I know I've been
involved in a number of situations where we've had repair efforts that we
needed to complete with court matters pending and so forth and you just
can’t get it done, even if you've got the funds.

As far as not having the funds, it’s far more important to have the time
to line that up. And if we pulled in a CSD grant program along with that, I
think the combination of more time and financial assistance goes huge strides
towards solving any problems of harassment or undue pressure or
discrimination that residents otherwise might say they would experience. I'd
certainly be in favor of 90 days. And my experience is, when there is a re-
inspection, it doesn’t necessarily come the 61t day after the notice goes out.
It's almost always 90 days or later. So if it sat there for seven or eight years
and wasn’t discovered, it gets cited. It’s not going to be re-inspected for 90
days, under the best of circumstances. Why not just extend the time. I dont
have any objection.

MR. PRIEST: I agree with the comments and with regard to the
financial assistance, too. That’s the area that we've received the most calls
on, you know, people who say, hey, 'm not even arguing or objecting to the

citation. I know that it’s there. I don’t have the funds. So perhaps trying to
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find an approach or existing, local funds, perhaps, that are available or that
could be modified to include mobile home rehabilitation or minor repairs,
emergency repairs, would be very helpful.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay.

MR. KERIN: We don’t have a problem with the 90 days. In the case of
an A violation that is more serious, we can set a lesser time so we can deal
with those. I wouldn’t want to go much beyond 90 days because, after you get
out there, after a while, you forgot that you got the notice until such time the
inspector shows up, so I think there’s a point where we're going to get less
compliance if we extend it out too far. And in case of hardships or plans to
correct it, but they just can’t do it within the 90 days, the Department’s
always been willing to work with anybody who has a plan to correct it. We're
really after voluntary compliance and not punishment.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Any last comments from the panel? Any
questions from the other members? No?

Hearing none, I want to thank each of the panelists. It’s nice to hear
that we have a spirit of cooperation, at least today. Hopefully, it will
continue and thank you.

And I'm going to call up, as we move to the general testimony, call up
in groups of four, on the lists that I have, so that we’re not moving back and
forth between each and every speaker. So if I can do that as we’re shifting
here, Doug McCauley, Clay Harrison, Craig Biddle, and Jim Sams. IfI can
ask them to come forward, please.

In our attempt to stay on time while everyone is getting settled in, if
you can keep your comments as short as possible, certainly, hopefully, under
five minutes, we’ll be able to do this fairly close to being on time. Thank you.

Okay. Why don’t we start with Mr. McCauley.

MR. DOUG McCAULEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Doug
McCauley, representing California Building Officials.
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We represent the city and county building departments, the chief
officers of those departments, and about 85 of those departments actually
enforce the act in most local municipalities. We did closely monitor the two
interim hearings this committee was good enough to hold on this issue,
although we didn’t provide any formal testimony. And unfortunately, we did
not participate in the roundtable meetings that Mr. Tennyson convened, not
due to lack of interest, but for whatever, wires were crossed.

Nonetheless, we did convene a special task force to look at this issue,
and I think we are in concurrence with a good amount of the testimony you
heard from the previous panel so I'm very encouraged by that. Nonetheless,
like with HCD, local jurisdictions are finding that we're not bringing in
sufficient revenue to cover the costs of this program and it’'s a very taxing
situation, poor choice of words there, because on one hand, we are bound by
the nexus requirements of the Government Code to charge costs for all of our
other services that cover the costs of those services. Yet, for the mobilehome
program, were having to subsidize those services from elsewhere, be it
General Fund or other places. So it puts us in a very precarious situation
financially and explaining to our finance directors and city managers why we
need to subsidize this mobilehome program. So clearly discussions about the
scope of the program, what violations we're looking at, are very relevant from
where we sit.

Additionally, I was also encouraged to hear about the educational
aspect of how that could be of value, and I'd like to extend an offer from our
organization, since we do hold meetings on a regular basis statewide, to help
facilitate those and provide some of our infrastructure and resources to
accomplish that. Again, we did have a task force to deliberate this and I
would like to introduce Mr. Pete Guisasola, an actual building official from

the City of Rocklin, who at one point did handle the mobilehome program for
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his city. Perhaps he could share some of his experiences and explain our
position further.

MR. PETE GUISASOLA: Thank you, Doug.

Mr. Chairman, Committee Members, I appreciate the opportunity to
speak before you. As Doug mentioned, we do really support the focus on
health and safety and we think that’s really where the program needs to be.
We had actually wanted to focus in on the A-type violations but it sounds like
the A- and B-type violations is where the majority of the people want to go
with this, and I think we could probably accept that also. But again, a clear
focus on health and safety would really help to get this program going
without some of the burdens of extra costs.

Prevention is key. We really like the prevention aspect — the
videotapes, the meetings ahead of time, the accompaniment on the
walkthroughs, on the inspection walkthroughs, the idea of the park owners,
you know, going along on the park owner’s side of the inspection and a
representative of the residents going along on the resident inspections is
probably a very good idea, probably lead to better compliance and a clearer
understanding of what the requirements are.

We like the five-year aspect, just mention that. Again, the cost issue,
for us it’s a cost issue, as Doug mentioned. We're generally speaking in the
$12 to $20 service range on this. And we know that, you know, there’s
limitation as to what we can do in the way of cost but we would like to see,
you know, see us come closer to the cost nexus that we have to provide for in
our local jurisdictions. And part of the problem, with the fee not covering the
cost, is there are some jurisdictions that will give up this program, and there
have been many that will give it up to the state because mainly I believe, and
our community believes, it’s a cost issue.

Another area you might want to look at is to try and deal with many of

these citations that, again, health and safety are fairly serious. But
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sometimes an infraction approach can make it a little easier to deal with too.
There are easier methods to get complaints if we're dealing with infractions
for misdemeanors. Again, eliminating the C and D, we're in favor of that.
And I don’t think that, you know, I don’t think the sharing of the notice of
violations serves any purpose, other than the very serious ones that were
mentioned. If there’s a gas leak or something like this, I think everyone
needs to know so that we can marshal the forces to get it corrected. Other
than that, I don’t think that it serves much of a purpose.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you.

MR. TENNYSON: I wasn’t quite clear on the fees that you were
talking about, $12 to $20. What is that? Per space, per year?

MR. GUISASOLA: Yes. Per space, per year.

MR. TENNYSON: You feel that’s a realistic fee increase? It’s $4 right
now.

MR. GUISASOLA: Well, I don’t want to say that that’s a realistic fee;
and clearly I — you know, I have a hard time adding any burden onto the
scene. Most of the residents are seniors and I don’t want to — I feel very
uncomfortable trying to add any fee there. But we would like to just see
somehow that fee match the cost in some way or get as close as possible and I
think we’ll have a more successful program.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Mr. Harrison.

MR. CLAY HARRISON: Yes. Thank you. It’s good to be here today.
Well, at my age, it’s good to be anywhere, really.

I'm going to deviate from my prepared testimony because a lot of it’s
been covered already, but I'd like to comment on a couple of things that were
mentioned with the panel discussion. The video, for instance, is a good idea
but I see far, far too many parks without a clubhouse so there would be no
place for the residents of those parks to view the video. Perhaps an

arrangement could be made by someone in a regional area, conduct the

32



viewing, invite everyone from the surrounding area for parks that don’t have
a clubhouse to come to a central place and see the video that way.

On some of the violations, we have found many encroachment
violations were issued. And the violation stated that the mobilehome
resident had to move their home, in some cases, just inches. And that
present mobilehome owner had nothing to do with placing that mobilehome
in its present condition where it was encroaching. There’s a case going on
right now in Nevada County in that regard.

There was mention about the abuses that sometimes are enacted and
we've seen that when the park owner gets the copy of the wviolation.
Oftentimes, management does abuse and use it to intimidate, harass, and I
know of at least one case where there was an eviction.

And, of course, our organization — by the way, I forgot to mention that
I'm the President of Placer County Mobilehome Residents Promoting
Equitable Treatment or the acronym is MR-PET. Let me see. I don’t want to
be saying things that are already covered. Oh, yes. We have found that in
many cases the inspectors do not have the skills of dealing with the public.
And we really believe that that is an area that needs to be addressed. And
the funding, yes, to continue the program and to adequately fund it.
However, perhaps the fees need to be increased but the expenditures need to
be closely looked at. And let me see, what else.

I guess that’s it, except that we're in favor of continuing the program
for an indefinite period and the playing field needs to be leveled, as far as
how the inspections are conducted.

MR. TENNYSON: Mr. Harrison, maybe this is a little bit out of left
field. How much of a fee increase do you think representatives, rather, the
members of your organization, would tolerate?

MR. HARRISON: As far as our organization is concerned, if the fees

were doubled, so now the homeowners would have to pay $4 per year, gosh,
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that’s such a small amount. But if there were any really serious hardship
cases where there was someone that couldn’t pay you $40 for a year, our
organization would devise a means of paying for that.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Mr. Biddle. Did I pronounce that
correctly? My apologies if I did not.

MR. CRAIG BIDDLE: Craig Biddle representing the Western
Mobilehome Park Owners Association.

And, Senator, let me just tell you, because youre new on the
Committee, that I was one of the people that was involved with the original
bill that was passed by then Assemblyman O’Connell. He wasn’t a Senator
back in those days. And as I recall, and he can correct me if I'm wrong...

SENATOR JACK O°’CONNELL: You're wrong. (Laughter)

SENATOR DUNN: That was easy.

MR. BIDDLE: What we very carefully, and Mr. Priest and myself and
Assemblyman O’Connell at that time, what we envisioned in the program at
that time was to have every park in the State of California inspected,
originally one in four years and then it was one in five years. And that’s the
way it passed, one in five years, and we agreed that it would be an inspection,
not only of the common area that we owned, the parks, but also of the
homeowners and we would split the fee. We would increase, we made a new
$4 fee and we paid $2 and the homeowners paid $2.

And I remember at the time that you said that you wanted to sunset it,
and I always thought from my experience with the Legislature that it’s sort of
a perennial thing to keep the lobbyists alive but that was a good sunset, it
was a good sunset, and we've had many hearings over the years since the
1990 period on this subject matter. And I guess our option at this point,
when Senator Craven put it in the last extension for a year last year, our first
option is to let it sunset. We could let it die on December 31, 1999. Our

second option would be to continue the program, as is, making it some little,
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minor modifications, which I don’t think anybody’s really suggesting, and Mr.
Tennyson wasn’t last year. And the third option, and I think, and this is
what WMA really thinks we have to do at this point, is we have to refocus the
program, refocus it not so that what we were talking about in 1999 every
park within so many, whatever period it is, six or seven or whatever period —
narrow the program down so it’s not every park.

There’s lots of parks where it’s not necessary to have an inspection
every five years or seven years. So the first problem, I think, in narrowing or
changing — not narrowing but changing — the focus of the program is we've
got to be able to identify which parks should be inspected and that’s going to
be tough and that’s going to take a statutory change and also work with
HCD. You can do it on chronic violations; you can do it on a number of
complaints; you can do it on past inspections. But there’s some parks that
don’t need an inspection every so many years, and there’s other parks that
maybe need it often, more often, than that. So the first thing I think in re-
focusing a program is to be able to identify that.

The second thing we’ve got to do, as we change the level of service in
the inspection program — and we’ve talked about it in connection with As and
Bs and Cs and Ds. Now granted, I think back in 1990, we were thinking we
wanted everything inspected and that’s why we came up with all this A, B, C,
and D stuff. But what we're really looking to do now is to come up with the
most serious health problems, as far as the tenants are concerned and the
park is concerned, and that’s the type of A, B that we're talking about. How
we exactly define those will be difficult but I think we can do it. So we
believe really, that within the fee structure that we presently have, if you
refocus the program, you only go for the parks that really need the inspection,
not all of them within a certain period, talk about A and B violations and

further refine those A and B violations down, we think you can do a program;
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you can do it within the budgetary restraints that we presently have, and it
will be a very worthwhile, helpful program to the mobilehome park industry.

Now we have had several meetings during the last couple of years. We
recently had a meeting with CMRAA, and Bruce Stanton was there, who
testified earlier on the panel. And I might tell you that that panel was an
excellent idea, very good program, and I'm not going to repeat a lot of the
stuff that the panel did. I think that’s the first time, Mr. Tennyson, we've
done a panel like that and I think it’s an excellent idea. If it was your
suggestion, I would commend you for it.

SENATOR DUNN: I would like to publicly thank John for it because
it was his idea.

MR. BIDDLE: But CMRAA, we met with CMRAA, Bruce Stanton,
recently, and talked about their proposal for revising the program and just
going with As and Bs and so forth and exactly how you do this and how you
determine which parks will be inspected. I can tell you that generally we
agree with that approach. WMA doesn’t have an official position at this time
but we agree with that approach. We'd like to work with Mr. Tennyson and
various groups on exactly how we do that. But I think we can do that and
with the spirit of cooperation that we've had in the last 12 months or 24
months now, we’'d like to continue with that.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you.

MR. TENNYSON: I'll ask you the same question I more or less asked
the others. Do you have a position on a fee increase, if it is necessary, as to a
limit or a position on whether it’s tenable at all?

MR. BIDDLE: We believe, if you refocus the program, you can do it
for the $4 per space, per year.

MR. TENNYSON: So in other words...

MR. BIDDLE: Refocus the program. You can do it with the existing
budget.
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SENATOR DUNN: Senator O’Connell?

SENATOR JACK O’CONNELL: Mr. Chairman, thank you. 1
appreciate Mr. Biddle’s recollection and it’s exactly as I recall it, as well from
about eight or nine years ago, and it helps to have your perspective, not only
as an advocate for your organization but also as a former Member of the
Assembly.

One or two things -- I think a lot of us do agree, that now that we’ve
almost completed all of the parks at one time, and it has taken longer than
Mr. Priest and you and I had thought, I think that’s important for the
baseline so that you know which parks you need to focus on. And I hear, you
know, somewhat of a consensus that we need to focus on the folks that need
the improvements.

My question is, and I hope it’s not an unfair question, how often do the
parks change hands? 1 know the Department of Realtors — are they sold —
the Department of Real Estate tells us that in California every five years,
your average person moves from one house to another, and I can see if you
have new park owners coming in that, you know, perhaps they've incurred a
higher, you know, mortgage and they might want to take a few shortcuts and
they might not be familiar with the HCD process or the local building
inspector process. Do you have a ballpark? Do these parks not change hands
too frequently?

MR. BIDDLE: I can’t give you a percent. Maybe Mr. Schweinfurth...

SENATOR O’CONNELL: I don’t mean to put you on the spot.

MR. BIDDLE: He’s shaking his head. Some of them don’t — I know
some in our association, and I belong to it, represented for more than 20
years, they’'ve owned those parks for 20 years, forever. Their parents owned
it, before they did, but there’s others that are corporate owned and they
changed; the corporation structure changes. But I don’t have a percentage.

It’s difficult to say.
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SENATOR O’CONNELL: I'm just wondering, for those that changed
hands somehow, you might want to trigger a little more frequent inspection
so that you don’t have a new person come in and trying to take shortcuts,
potentially jeopardizing the health and safety of the residents.

MR. BIDDLE: That might be one of the things you've got to — you've
got to figure out exactly which ones should be. Changing hands might be one
of the criteria. You'll have a list of criteria.

SENATOR O’CONNELL: And I think those are the more serious
violations, the As and Bs, which is something that we didn’t know how to
structure, you know, nine years ago, because we had never done that.

MR. BIDDLE: And I even had a couple of my park owners that said
that they would, if you're doing the criteria, if the park owner requested the
inspection. Another park owner said why would you even want an
inspection? Some of them would like it. Some would like to have an
inspection, for whatever reason, so that might be one of the criteria which we

have to develop the criteria.
SENATOR O’CONNELL: Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Any other questions? Mr. Sams.

MR. JIM SAMS: I want to thank the Committee for allowing me to
testify. My name is Jim Sams. I live in Olympia Mobile Lodge Mobilehome
Park in Sacramento. I'm a past vice-president of a statewide mobilehome
resident organization. However, I'm also speaking for other mobilehome
residents in Southern California, a former vice-president, a former regional
manager, and former associate manager. They have a number of parks in the
area where they have worked.

We have joined together as a watchdog committee to address issues we
feel are being neglected or wrongfully approached. I uphold the other
members of the committee on the following issues. The feeling of the

majority of the committee is as follows:
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The HCD inspections should be continued with reforms that protect
residents. However, there is unanimity that the program be carried out by
local government or, as one committee member put it: “They know best what
is really going on and why within their own area. Once HCD took over, the
whole program became a disaster.” And that’s his quote, not mine.

Another weakness in the program is the lack of action by the district
attorneys on resident complaints of violations. You realize, of course, that
this comment was written prior to me seeing your printout on where these
district attorneys are taking these cases so we’ll have to say that in some
areas, all right, not make it entirely. The committee members who were
active in resident issues during their term of office, and still are, indicate that
the DAs, for whatever reason, are not able or possibly willing to get involved
in many areas, so we have a lack of enforcement in those areas.

In the matter of what options were considered to be best, the
committee, in consultation with other mobilehome residents in Southern
California, felt that option 7(j) was the one they would support because of the
lesser fee stated, that in reality, or the lesser fee and the service provided
under those fees. It is a fact, though seldom stated, that in reality, the
homeowner in a mobilehome park pays the entire fee through increases in
rent down the pike. We know that businesses are not taxed; consumers are
taxed because the -business passes those costs along to the consumer, same
way in mobilehome parks. Committee members did in the main approve of
the use of videotapes for the orientation presentation prior to the inspection
of the park. However, it was felt that it would not achieve its purpose unless
presented by a resident organization that could answer questions raised by
the video, although it would save money, which would be a positive result.

As to the matter of park managers accompanying HCD inspectors on
the inspection of the park, the committees split. The greater number of the

committee, assuming that the manager would accompany the inspector,
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opted for balance by having a resident organization member along also. One
weakness in this case, as he has expressed, Clay expressed, is that not all
mobilehome parks have a resident organization or in some cases not even a
clubhouse or a place to meet. However, it was my understanding during
earlier talks that HCD had said something about sending personnel where
these parks did not have resident organizations.

The initial feeling, however, was that managers or park agents should
not accompany the HCD inspector. As to when or whether park owners
should even receive notice of resident violations, the majority agreed that
only after the HCD had gone completely to the end of its procedure on
violations should any notice be given. However, it was felt that notices
should be given to residents of park violations as a matter of procedure.

We have already pointed out the lack of effective enforcement in some
areas. I would propose to strengthen these capabilities that language be put
in the statutes which would fine any manager or park owner who violated
this and, of course, WMA has told us in the past that a lot of their park
owners don’t do these things so it wouldn’t hurt a normal park owner, or a
manager, who was threatening to evict or intimidate one of the residents. So
if that could be added to the statutes, it would give some enforcement where
none exist now, as to my understanding.

Finally, the committee overwhelmingly agreed that some sort of
assistance program was necessary for low-income mobilehome owners. Some
localities in Southern California are already providing some of this
assistance.

Thank you for your patience, as I've tried to aquaint you with a little
broader reaction to the inspection program. Although my personal feeling
has been to discontinue the program because of its inequities and abuses, if
legislation can come from this committee, which will address these

weaknesses, I will feel more comfortable as a mobilehome park resident and I
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want to say in conclusion that I was impressed by the panel. I think that it
sounded very good because they were willing to work and give and take. And
if the changes that I heard here are implemented, I would say that myself
and the committee would feel much better and say the program should
continue.

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Mr. Sams, thank you.

Thank you, each of you.

Let me call up the next commentators: Don Gilbert, John Hale, Harriet
White, Stan Hansen. And since we actually have five chairs up here,
Rosemary Tomai. Hopefully I pronounced that name correctly as well. Each
of those five to join us.

Do I have all five?

Okay. Welcome, everybody. Let’s start with Mr. Gilbert.

MR. DON GILBERT: Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee, thank
you for the opportunity to address you today regarding this matter.

As your agenda indicates, I'm Don Gilbert and I represent the
California Mobilehome Park Owners Alliance. It doesn’t indicate, however,
that I'm also here representing the California Travel Park Association, the
first association, the Mobilehome Park Owners Alliance, as it suggests, is an
association of mobilehome parks, and the second association is an association
of travel park owners, or commonly known as RV parks. Some RV parks fall
within the program.

I just have a few brief comments. In general, I agree with much of
what has already been discussed and suggested. I want to underscore both of
these associations’ concerns about a fee increase. We think, for all the
reasons suggested thus far, that the program can be implemented again
without a fee increase at all by narrowing the program. We agree with a lot

of the suggestions by restricting the inspections to A and B violations and so
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on and so forth, re-inspecting problem parks only, that kind of thing.
Another possibility, I'll just throw this out as food for thought at this point, is
maybe making the program a ten-year program, put it on a ten-year cycle,
which might make it more cost-effective.

I want to bring up one other item with regard to notices. We think the
idea is interesting, as far as posting second notices to park owners and really
don’t have a problem with that. We have one distinction though, however,
with regard to the copies of notices for A and B violations going to park
owners or residents, A and B violations going to park owners, we’d like to see
that continued under the program.

That really is the balance of my comments.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Mr. Hale.

MR. JOHN M. HALE: I'm John Hale, Chairman of the Placer County
Commission on Aging and I'm particularly concerned — I've looked at the
mobilehome parks as being a community. There are the owners and there
are the residents. But together, they make up the community and so that
jointly they need to be concerned about the safety and that if there are safety
in park matters, everybody ought to know about it. If there are safety
matters, it may be an individual, but it may have an impact on his neighbors.
That should be known. And so I think that is one of the basic things that I
feel. I think the -concept of a pre-inspection briefing is quite essential so
people understand and know more about it, and I think that there are ways
to do it perhaps where there is not a clubhouse. There may be ability to get
some community organizations to open up a facility and set a time at the
Knights of Columbus Hall or something like that, they would open up for
these kinds of pre-inspection briefings. I do think that certainly the posting
should come after a period of time, if it hasn’t been done by the time,
expiration time, then it can be posted and that the owners of the park can

know what hasn’t been done in a reasonable length of time.
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The last thing that I'm concerned about particularly and only touched
on somewhat briefly is that there are some people who will get notices who
frankly are so poor that they really can’t do that work and we need to think of
ways that that kind of financing can be accomplished.

I had other things to'say but they've already been said so I will not take
any more of your time.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you very much, Mr. Hale.

Ms. White.

MS. HARRIET WHITE: Thank you.

Chairman Dunn, Members, and Mr. Tennyson, I'm Harriet White,
Placer County Supervisor.

We formed a mobilehome advisory committee, similar to those in other
counties. We have a mixture of park residents and park owners who sit on or
attend these meetings. A countywide survey, which the committee
supported, of residents in mobilehome parks showed us that many park
problems have to do with personality situations, some brought on by lack of
training or caring of park managers. And, of course, there were the concerns
of escalating rents and other rate increases, which I'm sure you're well aware
of, but cause great anxiety to people on fixed incomes.

I believe county supervisors or a county ombudsman can help with
many of the concerns park residents have about how parks operate. The real
issue is keeping parks safe for the residents and, of course, for the entire
community. There will never be a complete satisfaction of mobilehome
residents or park owners about the HCD inspection program. However, it is
necessary for resident welfare. The HCD program has been a good one. Does
it need improving? I think we all agree with that. For the health, safety, and
welfare of the many residents of California who live in this type of affordable
housing, I request not only that you find a way to continue this program but

take the input that you receive today, along with staff input, and streamline
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the inspection program so it can function more efficiently and in a less
threatening manner to the old and infirmed. You have the ability to protect a
very important part of our population and I thank you in advance for doing
so.

SENATOR DUNN: Ms. White, thank you very much.

Mr. Hansen.

MR. STAN HANSEN: Stan Hansen. My wife and I own a small
luxury mobilehome park in Concord. We are certainly highly in favor of a
continuation of the program. We ended up putting in a great many hand
railings last year when the state came through and inspected it. Even
though the cost was up to several thousand dollars, I feel that possibly it
could have saved me litigation if somebody had fallen without the benefit of
these handrails throughout the garden pathways.

A suggestion came up under Mr. Tennyson’s chairmanship with the
committee last year in the hearings, that possibly contract inspectors could
do a much more economical job on this program to alleviate HCD from the
burden of the park inspection so that they could be more prompt on the setup
inspections and things that had to be neglected for the park inspections.
Nothing came of that but I'm suggesting that possibly that could be looked
into. You have the lists of the costs of the state employees in the back here
which some seem quite high, and I understand those are the costs, but this
would be a possibility.

We certainly favor a continuation of the program. I feel that eight
years is an awful long time. I would certainly favor the five-year period of
time and we would be willing to contribute more money to support the
program.

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Mr. Hansen, thank you.

And I'm going to guess you're not Rosemary.
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MR. MARVIN RIESACK: Yes. I'm Marvin Riesack representing
Rosemary Tomai, President of the Homeowners Coalition Mobilehome Parks
of Tuolumne County. And before I go into some of the remarks, I'd like to
mention that the Public Utilities Commission currently conducts an
inspection of the in-park propane systems for which I believe there’s a 25-
cent-per-month or $3-a-year charge. So I'm wondering if there is some
duplication in respect to what HCD inspectors are charged. I wanted to
mention that because I hadn’t heard it earlier. We're one of the counties that
has county inspectors and, of course, we're always concerned. As you know,
state government has shortchanged the counties over the last few years, and
I would like to make it a matter of record that any fee increases that do come
about, that the counties get their fair share of it.

I haven’t heard CPI mentioned here today, but I've done a lot of work in
rent control based on CPI, and I'll throw it out to you for a thought, that if
you've got to increase the fees, consider how much the cost of living has gone
up in that period of time and maybe this could be some kind of a guideline as
to how much fees could increase.

Another thing, I noticed that the park owners are charged a $25 fee
plus $2 per space per year. I pay more than that to register my boat trailer
with the State of California. I don’t know how long that has been. I'm not
trying to take a pot shot at them but I think that it’s something that ought to
be reviewed. I mean, people have cars that are 15, 20 years old and they're
paying more than that just to register their cars.

One of the weaknesses, and I'm repeating what the gentleman said, is
with the district attorney’s. We've had some problems in Tuolumne County.
And as you know, the state law says that the district attorney may take
action to enforce violations of the Health and Safety Code, and many of these
DAs are so involved with criminal prosecutions that they're very reluctant, if

ever, to get involved in litigation. And, of course, a lot of the people in the
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parks, they don’t have the funds to go to court and sue if there’s a problem, as
far as the maintenance of the park and I'd like the gentleman to remember
that situation.

We are wholeheartedly in support of these programs but feel very
definitely it needs to continue. How long? There’s been all kinds of opinions
expressed but it very definitely is necessary. And I think the park owners
would agree with this statement: The value of the park and the value of the
individual’s home is based on the condition of that park. They're in this
together; there’s a partnership there, ladies and gentlemen. And a lot of
people in these parks have had their homes really devalued where there has
been a lack of maintenance, problems, in that respect And for the
enhancement of mobilehome living — and I don’t live in a mobilehome. I live
in my own home in Twain Harte, but I have a lot of friends that do and I see
the problems.

I was a housing officer in the Army in Germany in 1952 after I came
back from the Korean War, and this is where I came from. We were fighting
to get housing for the men that came back from the war over there, and I was
also a housing officer at Fort Ord, California, where we had similar problems,
so you know where I come from. I've had a lot of experience in the military in
that respect. So you need this program. It should be mutually available to
everybody. And we do have problems down there, but luckily by having the
county close at hand, we can file complaints with them and they take action
very promptly. We don’t have to go through the bureaucracy to get things
done and I wholly favor, and I think local control is a great way to go if the — I
think there might be more communities, as I heard down at Pismo Beach,
might be willing to get back involved in doing these inspections if they got
adequate funding.

Thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank each of you for your comments.
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I want to bring you up to the last three, if I can.

MR. RIESACK: Mr. Dunn.

SENATOR DUNN: Oh, I'm sorry. Go ahead.

MR. RIESACK: I wanted to make the comment. I forgot that we're
very happy that Mr. Tennyson’s continuing on. He was very helpful last year
and that nobody knows the industry like he does.

SENATOR DUNN: I've discovered that.

MR. COLEMAN PERSILY: Can I speak?

SENATOR DUNN: Most definitely. We have three coming up and
you will be our fourth, okay? So why don’t I bring up the next three: Milan
Dobro, Hugh Bonds, Bettie Thompson, and, sir, please join us now as well.
Okay.

Again, as you're coming forward, just a reminder, that if you can keep
your comments to avoid repetition, it would be great.

All set? Mr. Dobro. You ready? Which one is Milan Dobro? There you
are. You're right there in front of me.

MR. MILAN DOBRO: Thank you. Members of the panel and new
Senate staff, my name is Milan Dobro. I'm here representing CMRAA, the
board of director members, and Dave Hennessy. Dave has been called to sit
on jury duty today, and I guess by now he’s got them convicted so he can go
on with the rest of the meeting here. (Laughter)

I have served as the Vice-President of the state organization for about
seven years. | am currently the President of nine mobilehome parks — a
mobilehome owners association in Haywafd. I also serve as the advisory
chairman with the City of Milpitas so I've had extensive service with
mobilehome problems.

To go quickly and not repeat things that were said here today, I think
the video is a very good tool to be used. There was some comment made

where there may not be a clubhouse or something but I'm sure that you asked
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the question: Do you have a VCR in your home, you’ll find that 99 percent of
people do have. So I don’t think that'll be a problem. I think the cost of
sending one video to each park would be the maximum amount that the HCD
should spend and let the park reproduce it with their own funds or the
association funds. I think that would be a simple way of doing it.

The other situation that I'd like to bring up is the time to solve
problems. Now most of these mobilehomes have residents in there who are in
their 70s because they started occupying these mobilehomes in the 1970s and
right now it’s 20 years later; they’ve all reached an age where unfortunately
for some, they've lost their mates and they're no longer employed and they're
living on Social Security. And as most of us know, the demand in our
generation has been the wife mostly stayed home so her Social Security
payments are very low. So I think we need to consider when there is a
violation and it’s a single occupant, especially a widow, that there be some
funds that may be made available to help her overcome whatever violations
exist, and I think this is only fair. These people of our generation don’t apply
for food stamps; they don’t apply for welfare payments. So this little
contribution to help them keep their home safe and their neighbors would be
well spent by the state.

The time is a very important factor. The other thing is, I have
experienced some: very serious eviction attempts on residents, especially
those that don’t have the funds to hire an attorney, by some park owners.
And I say “some”. There’s a lot of decent park owners. I live in one. Stan
Hansen owns the park. So there’s — and a lot of people are out there
conscientious. But when someone is trying to improve his home and puts up
a panel or something without the park owner’s permission or he doesn’t get a
permit, he gets cited by the park owner of this particular park and they give
him an eviction notice. And the only recourse he has, to either give in or, if

he’s got some funds, to hire an attorney to fight it. It shouldn’t be that way. I
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mean, minor violations should never exist to be a cause to take someone to
court to evict that person. So I think eliminating the C and D violations is
really important.

None of us, residents or park owners, want to live in a park where
there’s danger of an explosion, fire, someone that’s using his electricity in an
illegal manner, so we're all in favor of that being stopped. And the other
thing that I would like to offer is to have the park management organize a
committee with the residents to look over, if there’s such a thing as an
inspection, to help residents who are unable to take care of their property, to
come up with some means of finding a way to do it for them, voluntary work,
or maybe even ask the city for community service for some of the minor
violations of the law, to send people in there to trim their grass or take care of
their lawn or whatever is necessary to be done because we're coming to a time
in life where there’s a lot of people who are physically incapable of doing this
and yet we'd all like to see our neighbors’ areas look clean. I'm sure the park
owners would as well. And I'm willing to follow through on this stuff, if the
park owners are willing. Our organization is there to serve, say, as a
mediator, if any problems come up on a minor basis, and to eliminate the
extra of the HCD inspections, so those two areas.

All I'd like to say is that I agree with the statements made in the past
that parks that have passed successfully with previous violations or minor
violations should not be inspected immediately and that saving in not
inspecting homes or parks that have shown good records would result in the
lower costs. I would hope that that lower cost would allow you to continue
the same fee that exists today.

Thank you very much for your time.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you for your comments.

Mr. Bonds.
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MR. HUGH BONDS: Thank you very much for having me here, Mr.
Chairman, in allowing me to talk to you. Most of my concerns have been
answered, and I have a few things that I want to really enforce and let you
think about them, and, that is, one, when they do come in and inspect, they
should have one of the homeowners along with them. I don’t care if it’s the
association person they want to appoint or some homeowner that would like
to go around with him inspecting at that time.

Along with that inspection, it was hit on also that some of the
inspectors need to have a little sensitivity training when it comes to the
public. And that, I think is highlighted because they have been working with
the managers before they even talked to the homeowners. I think there’s a
lot of animosity that might be controlled by that and hard feelings between
the homeowners and the owners of the park.

Other than that, that’s the only two that I have.

Thank you very much for having me.

SENATOR DUNN: Okay. Thank you for your comments.

Ms. Thompson.

MS. BETTIE THOMPSON: Yes. I'm Bettie Thompson. Im
representing the mobilehome owners in El Dorado County. We have 81
mobile parks in El Dorado County and most of them, about 90 percent of the
occupants, are seniors. And one of the things that I agree with WMA, which
it’s very seldom I do, but one thing that he was saying about cutting back on
the inspections, I think, now all of the parks have rules and regulations. I
mean, they slap you with that the minute you walk in the door. You have
rules and regulations. One is keeping your place clean, keeping your mobile
up, and so forth.

And as someone mentioned earlier on the propane in El Dorado
County, that’s all we have for heat in El Dorado County, is propane. And

they have inspections on a regular basis. The suppliers inspect it constantly.
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If anyone even half way smells something, the suppliers are there checking it
out. So that part of it is taken care of.

I think, if there’s going to be a cutback — and some of the parks, very
few in El Dorado County, are exceptionally nice. Most of them are not run as
properly as I would like for them to be. Maybe the ones that, for inspection,
are the ones, if you designate the ones that have complaints. If the residents
complain that we have a lot of problems in that park, maintenance-wise and
health-wise, and safety-wise, then I think those are the ones that should be
really taken into consideration. The parks that have no managers at all, that
people just move in there, a lot of them in El Dorado County, I'm through the
parks every week, and some of them, as far as I know, have never had an
inspection, and they're extremely run down. If there’s no manager there,
then absolutely, I think they should be inspected. The ones that have
managers, like I say, as far as the residents are concerned, they have
regulations that they have to live up with. Very seldom do they have run-
down conditions if they have a manager there because that’s what the
manager is supposed to be doing.

As far as those type of mobilehome parks, I don’t think they need an
inspection on a regular basis. But the ones that are parks where the
residents cry out for help, that there are many, many abuses — and I mean
safety and health and maintenance — I've accompanied two or three in El
Dorado County to Small Claims Court because of lack of maintenance. And I
mean big, big problems. None of these have come through HCD, mainly
because, when you do it, if you file a complaint with HCD because of the
overwhelming areas that you cover, the whole state, it’s ages and months
before anything is done. By the time an inspector shows up, you've either
shot yourself or the park owner or somebody.

SENATOR DUNN: Let’s hope not either.
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MS. THOMPSON: But it is horrendous. There’s some parks that
need help very badly, and I think those are the ones that should get it. In
every county, there’s a lot of parks that are run beautifully and really don’t
need an inspector because, if there is a mobile that is run down, they take
care of it. They make sure that it’s taken care of when they first move in. So
if you're going to cut back, I think that’s where it should be cut back. But
please, when mobilehome residents call and ask for help, put them high on
your priority list because, believe me, they're out there and they need it.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you, Ms. Thompson, very much.

MS. THOMPSON: Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: And, sir, we've met before, but if you could restate
your name, please.

MR. COLEMAN PERSILY: Yes. My name is Coleman Persily. I'm
Vice-President for GSMOL in Northern California.

I'd like to follow what this lady said here, maintenance. I think that
she’s got a good idea there, that if you notice one, two, and three people,
writing in and complaining about the maintenance of a park, that should be
on your high priority because we have no way to force a manager to maintain
unless we go through court procedures.

The next problem we have is lot lines. I'm not sure whether the lot
lines are A, B, C, or D. But whichever they are, that’s something we need
help on. Park owners now are beginning to move in doubles. For a long time,
there were singles. Park owners now are beginning to move in doubles and
violating the lot lines by being doubles and putting their new homes against
some other home on the left or some other home on the right. And as a result
now, the park owners are doing their best to get rid of the singles and putting
in these doubles and then it works hardship on the people, the neighbors. So
I think, I don’t know whether they're A, B, C, D, E, F, G, whatever it is, but I
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do hope that lot lines should be part of your program because there’s all sorts
of violations and lot lines and we get that all the time.

I think, that if the inspector walks through the park with a
representative, if there’s an organization in the park; if there’s no
organization, we can’t do nothing. But if there’s a homeowner association or
a chapter of the GSMOL or there’s another organization, I think they should
consult this because, if a president of a homeowner association walks around
with the inspector, there’s more of a reception. The person isn’t afraid, the
person feels he’s got representation. And not only that; but when it’s all
done, the homeowner or the GSMOL chapter representative can go back to
this person and work it out. And if he doesn’t have any money, to find some
way to do it, clear it up. But I think it would do good for the Department to
work, to have the representative of an organization with the inspector. I
think we can do a lot of good and work with him and also show people what to
do.

I do think that the citations should never go to a park owner. We've
had a lot of bad experience with that, not only because the park owners don’t
like GSMOL or a homeowner present. That isn’t the only subject. It could be
a park owner who wants to get rid of a single so they could put a double in.
This could be a park owner who may have some animosity to some particular
people living there. So I do think that the citation should not go to a park
owner. We have had some serious problems with that.

And the next thing is, the citations should not have threats. The usual
citation is, if you blah-blah-blah-blah, it’s a misdemeanor. People think
they're going to jail or something and they get panicky. Be nice about it in
your citation. You know, say it’s for your own good, for your own health, for
your own safety; you know, we think it’s a good idea for you to fix your steps

or whatever youre doing. I don’t think you should threaten and say it’s a
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misdemeanor. Lay off that. Maybe at the last, 90 days later, or something
when they’re really tough or something, not at the beginning.

And the third thing that I would say is that you should work with the
rehabilitation program. I don’t know if you people are familiar with that.
But there is in the State of California a rehabilitation program to prepare you
and take care of your home — fix your roof, fix your floors, anything you want.
And what they do, what the rehabilitation program does, is it puts a lien on
your home, and they even get interest. So if you've got a senior citizen who'’s
in the 60s, 70s, and 80s, and she’s got maybe a home worth $20,000, $30,000,
$40,000, it’'s very simple. You get the rehabilitation program; they fix up
your house. It don’t cost the person a dime. And so that in your, in your
citations, you should just put in there, just put in there: “In case you can’t
afford to repair your home, you know, call the county and ask for the

b

rehabilitation program.” Put that in there because there are funds for that
because the average person 60-, 70-, and 80-years-old don’t care if the house
sells for less or the kids get a little less money. So I think that’s a way to
overcome people who can’t afford...

Thank you.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you.

Comment? I'm sorry. Ms. Thompson.

MS. THOMPSON: Pardon me. Yes. Now say, for instance, like I say,
I see horrible situations out there every week. Say, for instance, a park
owner has been cited. What is the penalty; what happens if they still do
nothing? What happens?

SENATOR DUNN: John, would you comment on that?

MR. TENNYSON: Well, basically, if it gets to that point where the
park owner refuses to fix the violation, the Department of Housing can
request the district attorney, or does request the district attorney, to take a

criminal action in court and prosecute the park owner for that violation.
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They can also pull the permit to operate and close the park. Of course, that is
not a solution because, when you close the park, then everybody is evicted,
essentially, with the proper notice.

There has been at least one case in Los Angeles County where a park
owner went to jail over a very serious violation involving sewage spillage and
a backup of sewage into some of the homes, as well as environmental
violation in terms of sewage running out of septic tanks and into a nearby
stream next to the park. But ultimately, they don’t like to go that far
because, if a park owner ends up in jail, usually the park is closed and that is
not a solution for the homeowners, but ultimately that’s what can happen.

SENATOR DUNN: Can I turn to Senator Chesbro?

SENATOR WESLEY CHESBRO: I hate to interrupt the
conversation. I just wanted to say briefly, Mr. Persily, I believe you're a
resident of my district.

MR. PERSILY: Oh, you're Mr. Chesbro.

SENATOR CHESBRO: That’s right.

MR. PERSILY: Everybody speaks of you and now I'm lucky to meet
you.

SENATOR CHESBRO: I wanted to welcome you and just say that
not only did I discover, as I travel that huge district of seven counties, the
many, many mobilehome parks that exist — I knew the ones in my county but
I discovered the ones in the other six counties — but looking at this list of
violations, there’s a considerable number that are in the seven counties in my
district, so this has been very enlightening, and I appreciate your suggestions
and ideas and expect to be working closely with you.

MR. PERSILY: Thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: One last thing?

MR. DOBRO: Yes. I'd like to make a comment about what Mr.

Persily has said about the moving in of the newer mobilehomes. I'm facing
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that problem in some of our parks in Hayward and I don’t know whether
HCD is getting the requests, when they put these homes in, to make sure
they’re not occupying more space then they’re allotted. But there’s one home
in particular where they got their fence right up against the driveway. The
person can’t get the door open to allow his mother to get out and get in the
wheelchair, so I'm going to be pushing that notice to HCD inspections to find
out whether they are in violation of that. I just wanted him to know that.

SENATOR DUNN: Assemblyman Correa.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOU CORREA: The notices of violations for the
residents, are you proposing some solutions as well in each one? And if you
are, would you say some of those solutions possibly come from the association
of the residents or out of the inspection agency itself?

MR. DOBRO: Well, the inspection agency in its notice, I think, should
just be a little bit nicer, not scare people with misdemeanors and this kind of
stuff. That’s the first thing.

And the second thing, if, for example, if there’s an organization, like a
homeowner association or a GSMOL chapter, to notify us so that we can go
over and work on it. Maybe, for example, I've been a president of a
homeowners association. I've become like the grandfather. I mean, people
come in with all sorts of problems. If I went in with a park inspector and
found this woman had some problem and she couldn’t afford the thousand
dollars, or whatever it is to fix her fence or roof, whatever it is, I would find a
way to get it together to take care of her. I think, by taking the presidents of
the homeowner associations, or chapters, with them, these people, whoever
they are, I've been working with these people and trying to help them -- that’s
why they’re presidents -- they can show them what to do about it. Well, this
way, the person gets a citation and is scared and runs in the bedroom and
starts crying, what do I do?

Does that kind of answer your question, sir, or not?
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ASSEMBLYMAN CORREA: Kind of, yes. Thank you very much.

SENATOR DUNN: Any other questions or comments from the
Members?

I'd like to thank all of those this afternoon providing general testimony.
I'd like to thank the paneliéts as well.

Just so everyone knows, we expect to get a report out of the Committee
within about a month. I have asked that Mr. Tennyson continue his
meetings with all of those interested in this issue. As I commented earlier, I
liked to hear the spirit of cooperation today. I hope everybody was honest
and straightforward about that because we hope to seize upon that
expression of cooperation today. And for all those who are in attendance but
did not testify, thank you for being here as well today. Without your
participation, we couldn’t make this process work as well.

With that, the meeting is adjourned and thank you again.

MR. DOBRO: Thank you.

MS. THOMPSON: Thank you and welcome aboard.

SENATOR DUNN: Thank you very much.

—o00o0—
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RECOMMENDATIONS

As the result of the testimony from the January 26" hearing, committee
recommendations for continuation of the park inspection program are
contained in the following “Concept Bill: Phase II.”

58






CONCEPT BILL for MOBILEHOME PARK INSPECTION PROGRAM - PHASE I

Time Period:
Second program cycle to commence on January 1, 2000 and sunset on January 1, 2007.

Task Force:

The Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) shall convene a task force of
representatives of mobilehome park owners, mobilehome owner organizations and local
government building officials at least once a year to provide input to the department for solving
problems involving, and make recommendations to the to the department on the conduct of, the
Mobilehome Park Inspection Program.

Focus:

Focus of the program shall be on inspection of mobilehome parks which:

1) are sold to a new park owner or resident group (not including transfer by gift, devise, or
operation of law, sale between or among joints tenants or tenants in common, transfer by a
partnership to any of its partners, or transfer pursuant to probate).

2) had the most serious, or a substantial number of serious, health and safety violations in the
first inspection cycle (1991-99), as determined by the enforcement agency.

3) have a substantial number of complaints to the enforcement relating to serious health and
safety violations in the park, as determined by the enforcement agency.

Notice of Inspection:
By law, enforcement agencies to provide individual notice to residents and park owner of an
impending inspection (as is current HCD practice).

Orientation:

Enforcement agencies shall provide a pre-inspection orientation to homeowners and residents of
the park, no less than 30 days prior to an inspection, through coordination with the park
management and, or, homeowners association representative(s) in the park, if any, and with the
use of a video tape, or where practicable through the use of a live presentation by the
enforcement agency.

Accompanying the Inspector:

An inspector shall notify the representative(s) of the homeowner’s association in the park, if any,
at least 30 days prior to the inspection of the inspection date(s) and the right of the homeowner’s
association representative(s) to accompany the inspector on the inspection.

Violation Categories:

HCD shall have one year to “formalize” the categorization of A, B, C & D violations. In the
meantime enforcement agencies shall be given legislative authority to disregard so-called C & D
violations, which shall not be cited, recorded or required to be corrected, and HCD shall issue an
information bulletin to enforcement agencies advising them that C & D violations are not to be
cited, recorded or required to be corrected. During the one year period, HCD convene at least
one meeting of the Mobilehome Park Inspection Program task force to provide input to the
department on the categorization of specific violations. At the end of the one year period, HCD
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shall submit a report to the Legislature on the formal categorization of violations. Thereafter, the
Legislature may wish to consider decriminalizing C & D violations altogether, based upon the
formalization of the categories.

Time to Fix:

With the exception of a violation that constitutes an imminent hazard, defined as an immediate
risk to life, health, or safety and requiring immediate correction (A violation), in issuing a notice
of a violation, the enforcement agency shall provide that the correction of the violation shall be
made within 90 calendar days of the postmarked date of the notice. Other than for imminent
hazards (A’s), if the enforcement agency determines there is a valid reason, including but not
limited to weather conditions, illness, availability of repair persons, or availability of financial
resources, why the violation has not been corrected, the agency may extend the time for
correction up to 30 days after the initial 90-day period.

Citation Notices:

Notices of violations shall be served by first-class mail or personal delivery by the enforcement
agency to individual mobilehome owners or mobilehome park owners who are responsible for
their respective violations, but with the exception of notices of violations that constitute an
imminent hazard, defined as an immediate risk to life, health, or safety requiring immediate
correction (A violations), copies of notices of violations (B violations) by mobilehome owners
discovered pursuant to this section shall not be furnished by the enforcement agency to the
mobilehome park owner, operator, or management, unless the violations have not been corrected
by the homeowner upon re-inspection after the initial 90-day period, or, where a 30-day
extension is granted by the enforcement agency, upon a second re-inspection after the 30-day
extension, whichever date is applicable. It is the intent of the Legislature that all notices of
violations be specific as to the particular violation and written so that average laypersons can
understand what is being cited.

Financial Assistance:

HCD shall develop a list of local agencies which have home rehabilitation or repair programs for
which mobilehome owners residing in mobilehome parks may be eligible. The list shall be
provided to homeowners who receive citation notices and who reside in those jurisdictions which
have such programs for which mobilehome owners may be eligible. (HCD or the Select
Committee to also explore the possibility of separate legislation to create a state program to
provide financial assistance to very low income mobilehome park residents to help repair and
correct mobilehome inspection violations).

Records:
Enforcement agencies responsible for the enforcement of health and safety code requirements in

mobilehome parks shall maintain all inspection records until January 1, 2007.

Legislative Report:
HCD shall provide detailed reports to specified legislative committees on the progress of Phase
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11 by January 1, 2003 and January 1, 2006 and shall have the authority to require data on the
program from local agencies which enforce health and safety requirements for mobilehome parks
in order to complete the legislative reports.
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MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK MAINTENANCE
INSPECTION ACTIVITY

Department of Housing and Community Development
Division of Codes and Standards

Prepared for the Golden State Mobilehome Owners League
September 16, 1998 Roundtable Discussion

The examples below represent a sampling of mobilehome park maintenance inspection cases where
serious enforcement action was required to obtain correction of cited violations of applicable health and
safety codes. These cases are described here to help illustrate the necessity, and the effort made, to insure

safe living environments in all mobilehome parks. They are listed in alphabetical order, by park name.

Anchor Trailer Park (44 Lots) and Sportsmans’ Park (23 Lots), Fort Bragg, Mendocino
County.

These two parks are adjacent and were owned and operated by the same person. When routine
maintenance inspections were conducted, 431 violations were found in the 44-space Anchor, and
185 in the 23-space Sportsmans’. The case was submitted to the Mendocino County District
Attorney in December 1995, because the owner refused to correct the violations. With the DA’s
aggressive assistance, all the violations in the two parks were corrected by February 1997. The
DA was in the process of negotiating fines of up to $200,000, when the park owner was fatally
shot by a former park employee. The fines were eventually reduced and the park owner’s estate
paid almost $9,000 for inspection and other enforcement costs.

Arlington Heights Trailer Park, Taylorsville, Plumas County, 39 Lots.

After prolonged efforts, correction of numerous health and safety violations in Arlington Heights
Trailer Park have been made. The park was initially cited for 135 violations, including various
electrical hazards, an open sewer inlet and other plumbing violations, and dangerous conditions
in substandard rental units owned by the park operator.

After five notices of violation, as case for filing with the Plumas County District Attorney was
being prepared serious correction activity commenced. When the District Representative
conducted a final reinspection of the park, she found the last of the violations had finally been
corrected.



A SAMPLING OF PARK MAINTENANCE INSPECTION ACTIVITY

Bakersfield Travel Park, Bakersfield, Kern County, 100 Lots.

The owner of this 100 space mobilehome park was cited in 1997 for operating a mobilehome park
without a valid Permit to Operate and for a variety of health and safety problems. Most of the
violations were related to the construction of 24 new spaces in the park with no inspections or
permits. After several warnings a complaint was filed with the Kem County District Attorney’s
Office. The District Attorney’s office advised the park owner, he had until January 15, 1998 to
obtain required inspections and permits and pay delinquent fees. The park owner did not respond.
The Kern County Superior Court issued a “Bench Warrant” for the arrest of the park owner and set
bail at $4500.

On April 16, 1998, the Kemn County Sheriff’'s Department arrested the park owner at the
mobilehome park. Prior to being taken away, the park owner paid delinquent fees in the amount of
$6,250.00 and $1,016.00 permit fees for the construction of the additional 24 spaces. Currently, the
park is in compliance.

Bloomdale Mobile Home Park, Olivehurst, Yuba County, 17 Lots.

The initial park maintenance inspection resulted in citation of 163 violations in this 17-space
park: 71 park and 92 resident violations. Notices of Violations and reinspections resulted in all
but 4 of the resident violations being corrected, but 28 park violations remained. The violations
included many serious electrical hazards and open trenches within the park to compensate for the
inadequate drainage grading.

Because of the park owner’s failure to eliminate the hazards, the case was referred to the Yuba
County District Attorney in November 1997. In February 1998, the DA wrote the park owner
giving him six weeks to make corrections. When the Department’s subsequent reinspection
found violations remaining, a warrant was issued for the park owner’s arrest. The DA has thus
far been

satisfied enough to stall arrest however the situation is being monitored.

The owner of this park also owns and operates Gumtree Mobile Home Park in Yuba City, Sutter
County. The Department had initially encountered a similar situation at this park but substantial
improvement has been made.

Bodega Bay Park, Bodega Bay, Sonoma County — 15 MH Lots/40 RV Lots.

While conducting a routine maintenance inspection of the park, the inspector detected the odor of
escaping LP gas and investigated. He contacted the park manager who called the LP gas
company, which immediately sent a representative to investigate and locate the source of the
problem. The gas company dug up a suspect line and found and repaired the leak. A gas pipe
riser at an occupied lot was the source of the leak. The problem, which might have had serious
consequences for the mostly elderly residents of this park, was resolved the same day.
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A SAMPLING OF PARK MAINTENANCE INSPECTION ACTIVITY

Camellia Mather Mobile Home Park, Sacramento, Sacramento County , 32 Lots.

The inspector received a complaint of sewage running out of the septic tank lid. When he
confirmed the complaint, he ordered the park to correct it immediately. The park had the tank
pumped, but within two weeks, the problem reoccurred.

The park’s owner had died last year, and his sons had not defined who would assume
responsibility for park matters, so there was a delay in reaching a permanent solution.

The tank should not have refilled in just two weeks, so it was evident water was leaking into the
tank from another source. The area around the tank was excavated, and a cracked water line was
found to be leaking and filling the tank. The leak was repaired, and the tank is now functioning
as designed. With persistent follow-up and directives from the Department, a permanent solution
was obtained.

Capitol West Mobile Park, West Sacramento, Yolo County , 67 Lots.

Capitol West Mobile Park received its first mobilehome park maintenance inspection in
November 1993 and was cited for a total of 534 violations, 60% of them park violations. Only a
fraction of these remained after the Final Notice of Violation, but several of these were
considered serious enough to pursue with the Yolo County District Attorney’s Office.

The inspector believed the park owner would correct the violations, it informed of the
consequences, so an enforcement letter was sent to the owner in June 1995. The violations were
corrected and the file was closed, without the need for further enforcement action.

Deerhorn Lodge, Phillipsville, Humboldt County, 33 Lots.

Progress is being made in correcting the long-standing problems in this older mobilehome park.
In May 1998, the Humboldt County Superior and Municipal Court granted a preliminary
injunction against the owner-operator of Deerhorn Lodge. The injunction included scheduling
violation corrections in 30-, 60- and 90-day intervals.

When the District Representative conducted an inspection to determine compliance with the 30-
day correction order, she found all but 2 had been completed, and a permit had been obtained for
one of the outstanding. The DA’s Office has agreed to allow the park owner until the 60-day
correction deadline to correct the items. If all 30-day and all 60-day items have not been
completed by the 60-day deadline, the DA’s Office will request action by the Humboldt County
Superior Court to compel compliance.
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Clark’s Trailer Park, Willits, Mendocino County , 12 Lots.

During the initial maintenance inspection 150 violations were cited. Sixty-six were park
violations, primarily electrical and fire safety violations. After discussions with Department
representatives and three Notices of Violation, no substantial progress was made. The case was
referred to the Mendocino County District Attorney for action.

Clark’s Trailer Park was one of several parks in Mendocino County referred to the DA. Prior to
commencing legal action on this case, the DA had succeeded in a substantial enforcement action
at another mobilehome park in the county, resulting in the park owner correcting all violations
and paying a substantial monitory penalty. Shortly after the DA contacted the owner of Clark’s
Trailer Park a follow up inspection conducted in August 1998 revealed that all violations had
been corrected.

Fairfield Mobilehome Park, Fairfield, Solano County , 30 Lots.

In April 1994, the Department received an anonymous complaint alleging electrical surges in the
park. On investigation, the inspector identified and cited the park for electrical system overhead
conductors exposed to the elements, power poles that were loose or broken at the base, and a
PG&E-verified unacceptable variance in voltage ranges. The park was ordered to obtain a
construction permit and effect corrections. Six days later, the park manager told the Department
repairs would begin the next day and would be completed within two weeks.

Just over a month later, the park owner provided plans for proposed corrections. The plans were
found to be unfeasible and inadequate, and the owner was told to resubmit the plans the next day
with necessary changes. A week later, when acceptable plans had not been submitted, the matter
was referred to the Northern Area Legal Desk for further enforcement action.

A package was prepared to refer the matter to the Solano County District Attorney, but placed on
hold because acceptable plans had been submitted along with a request for an alternate approval.
The alternate approval ‘was granted, a fixed time-table was established for corrections, and
ultimately all correction were made.

Fitzimmons Enterprises Mobilehome Park, Rosamond, Kern County, 18 Lots

After several attempts by the Department to gain compliance a complaint was filed by HCD
with the Kem County District Attorney on March 30, 1998, relative to violations in this
park. The maintenance inspection revealed 151 health and safety violations and despite
notices there was no significant progress. The violations cited included fire hazards, open
sewer drains, junk abandoned vehicles, unvented gas water heater substandard/unsafe
homes, exposed live electrical wiring, accumulation of refuse, rubbish, waste, combustible
flammable waste, trash, animal feces, rat infestation, lack of trash containers, mobilehomes
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A SAMPLING OF PARK MAINTENANCE INSPECTION ACTIVITY

rented without insignia of approval, etc. The case was filed and the Kern County Superior
Court promptly issued a warrant for the arrest of the park owner, William Fitzimmons.

On April 9, 1998, the park owner was placed under arrest, on a seven count misdemeanor
charge, and bail set at $5,000.

On April 21, 1998, staff revisited the mobilehome park in preparation for the arraignment
scheduled for April 22. The park was still in the same substandard condition. On April 22,
Mr. Fitzsimmons was arraigned on seven misdemeanor charges in the Kemn County
Superior Court. This case is currently pending as a “running trial,” with revisits to the park
every 30 days to determine progress.

E-Z Livin Mobile Estates, Willits, Mendocino County , 27 Lots.

After multiple violation notices and an enforcement letter to the park owner, numerous violations
remained in the park, including electrical, gas, plumbing and fire-safety hazards, with the
potential to cause serious injury and/or property damage. The case was referred to the
Mendocino County District Attorney in December 1995. In reviewing the case, the Deputy
District Attorney responsible for prosecuting the case asked the Department to write the park
owner, telling her the case had been discussed with the District Attorney’s office and giving her
one final opportunity to make the corrections. The letter was written and all violations were
corrected.

Fortuna Trailer Village, Fortuna, Humboldt County , 43 MH Lots, S RV Lots.

When the initial maintenance inspection was conducted 211 health and safety violations were
cited: 74 park and 137 resident violations. When reinspections were conducted not only was
there poor compliance but many new violations. Exposed electrical conductors, unapproved
wiring, unsupported gas lines, sewage leaking onto the ground, and combustible rubbish and
debris on the grounds of the park were among the problems cited.

In spite of extensions granted and additional notices there remained 99 park violations and 31
resident violations on the final inspection. In January 1995, a package was prepared to refer the
case to the Humboldt County District Attorney. The remaining violations included inadequate
electrical service to lots, exposed electrical parts, ungrounded electrical service equipment,
electrical cable subject to physical damage, unsecured electrical equipment, inoperable fire-
suppression water outlets, an unsupported main gas supply line, unapproved gas piping,
improperly-supported gas meters, lot without identification for emergency-response personnel,
and other miscellaneous safety violations. The park owner was advised of the pending District
Attorney referral.

DA involvement became unnecessary. Shortly after becoming aware of the District Attorney
involvement all violations were verified to have been corrected.
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Hacienda Vasquez Mobilehome Park, Aqua Dulce, Los Angeles County, 65 Lots.

In April 1994, the owner of this Los Angeles County park was cited for approximately 153
health and safety violations including exposed electrical conductors and equipment, and failing
septic tanks, leach lines, lift stations and open septic tanks. Raw sewage was noted on the park
grounds and drainage of raw sewage onto adjacent properties. It was learned from a resident that
a child had recently fallen into one of the open septic tanks as a result of the lack of septic tank
lids.

The park owner was cited to immediately correct all hazards. After several attempts to gain
compliance without success, the Department requested the assistance of the Los Angeles County
District Attorney’s Office. The Los Angeles District Attorney filed a “felony child
endangerment” complaint with the Los Angeles Superior Court in Lancaster and the Superior
Court appointed a “Receiver” to oversee the mobilehome park and to bring it into compliance.
Even after several attempts by the Court appointed Receiver to correct the long standing
violations and acquire the necessary funding to complete the work, the Receiver was unable to
complete corrections. The Department left with no other alternative, subsequently revoked the
Permit to Operate for this mobilehome park.

Los Angeles County is presently financially assisting the remaining residents in relocating their
homes to other area parks. On April 25, 1997, the park owner was sentenced to the California
State Penitentiary to serve a four (4) year jail term.

Hangtown Mobile Home Park, Placerville, El Dorado County, , 30 Lots.

In January 1992, Department inspectors verified that raw sewage was surfacing in the roadway of
this park and an immediate correction notice was issued. When the reinspection was conducted
the inspector found that nothing had been done to correct the violation.

In April, the park’s Annual Permit to Operate was suspended. Within a few days, the park owner
requested a hearing, told the Department the sewage leak had been temporality stopped, and
reported to having hired a civil engineer to design a new septic system for the park. Onspection
revealed sewage continued to surface in the roadway and it was running into a nearby creek. An
order was issued in conjunction with the El Dorado County Environmental Health Department,
to correct this condition.

Plans were submitted three times for new septic system designs before an acceptable plan was
proposed, and a permit was issued. Work was again stalled and the park’s property manager was
informed that HCD submitted the case to the District Attorney. Shortly thereafter a permanent
correction was made and no further problems have been reported.
a-6
September 1998



A SAMPLING OF PARK MAINTENANCE INSPECTION ACTIVITY

Hidden Acres Trailer Villa, Vacaville, Solano County , 50 MH Lots, 2 RV Lots.

When the initial mobilehome park maintenance inspection was conducted in this park there were
546 violations cited for correction; 188 of these were park violations. After three violation
notices, all but three park violations and seventeen resident violations had been corrected. The
park violations were hazardous and included a lot service with inadequate overcurrent protection,
improper grounding at another, and plumbing fixtures without required “P” traps. Some of the
resident violations were also serious health and safety risks, a unit that did not pass an electrical
ground test, insufficient fire-suppression clearances, and an accumulation of flammable rubbish
and debris.

A package was prepared to refer the case to the Solano County District Attorney. However, it
became known that the case was being referred and all violations were corrected without further
action needed.

Huron Trailer Park, Huron, Fresno County, 21 Lots.

In September 1997, staff cited 297 health and safety violations at this park. The park owner was
cited and failed to make a reasonable effort to bring the park into compliance. The case was
submitted to the Fresno County District Attorney’s Office. The DA contacted the park owner
requesting a meeting with the park owner. The owner was advised that failure to comply would
result in the filing of a civil action for injunctive relief, including restitution and civil penalties
of $2500 for each violation.

Staff conducted a reinspection on April 1998. The reinspection revealed the park owner had
corrected all outstanding violations as instructed by the District Attorney.

Indianola Park, Eureka, Humboldt County , 70 Lots.

When a routine mobilehome park maintenance inspection of Indianola was conducted in
February 1996, the Department cited 497 violations, 69 park and 428 resident violations. The
park violations included serious electrical and fire-safety-clearance violations. Although most of
the violations were corrected, two dangerous park violations remained even after three Notices of
Violation and an enforcement letter. The case was submitted to the Humboldt County District
Attorney. The park owner’s attorney was informed of the pending involvement by the District
Attorney.

The violations were soon corrected precluding action by the District Attorney.
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A SAMPLING OF PARK MAINTENANCE INSPECTION ACTIVITY

Lakeview Haven Resort, Upper Lake, Lake County — 5 MH Lots, 40 RV Lots.

Department inspectors cited the park owner for overflowing septic tanks causing sewage backup
into the park showers and sewage on the ground around the shower building. In addition, a water
leakage draining into the septic holding tank and extension cords providing electrical service to
several mobilehomes and recreational vehicles were cited.

When the conditions had not been corrected after reasonable notice, the case was referred to the
Lake County District Attorney. Enforcement of the corrections was delayed when the park was
sold to a new owner. However, within a short time, the new owner eliminated the hazards and
cleaned up the park.

Mac’s Trailer Park, Vacaville, Solano County , 24 Lots.

This is an older mobilehome park that had been allowed to deteriorate. During the park
maintenance inspection, 250 hazardous and potentially hazardous conditions were identified,
including broken sewer vents, gas lines without shutoff valves, electrical hazards and potential
flooding problems. After the first Notice of Violation, the reinspection revealed 291 violations.
When repeated notices and discussions with the park owner failed, the case was referred to the
Solano County District Attorney.

The DA found it necessary to file an action, that resulted in correction of all violations, including
a new, underground electrical system for the park, and a substantial monitory judgment against
the owner. In June 1998, the Department was reimbursed almost $6,500 for extraordinary
enforcement expenses incurred because of the owner’s delay in making corrections.

Madeline Service Center, Madeline, Lassen County, 12 Lots

Transmittal of the Department’s case against this mobilehome park to the Lassen County District
Attorney brought quick closure to a serious problem. The Department’s District Representative
had inspected the park and cited 85 problems, including electrical, plumbing and fire-safety
violations in this small park. The owner assured the inspector the violations would be corrected
forthwith, most of them through new construction. After continued promises of correction and
subsequent delays, the matter was referred to the District Attorney for action.

The District Attorney was very responsive, calling the owner in and advising her of the
consequences of failing to act. A bench warrant for her arrest had been issued. The DA advised
the owner that the warrant would not be activated provided all violations were corrected and
inspected within forth-five days. The violations were all corrected within the forty-five day
limit.
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A SAMPLING OF PARK MAINTENANCE INSPECTION ACTIVITY

Mobile Home Estates, Santa Rosa, Sonoma County , 136 MH Lots, 8 RV Lots.

394 violations were cited during. the initial mobilehome park maintenance inspection of this
relatively large park. About 100 were park violations. Upon reinspection only a few park
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